








State County

Anticipated 

SRS Payment       

2015

25% County 

payment

25% County 

Payment minus 

7.3% Sequester

Loss Prior to 

Sequester - SRS 

VS 25%

Loss with 

Sequester - SRS 

Vs Sequestered 

25%

California Alpine $467,839 $184,751 $171,264 ($283,088) ($296,575)

California Amador $307,729 $124,182 $115,117 ($183,547) ($192,612)

California Butte $432,540 $53,342 $49,448 ($379,198) ($383,092)

California Calaveras $164,662 $48,837 $45,272 ($115,825) ($119,390)

California Colusa $121,878 $3,796 $3,519 ($118,082) ($118,359)

California Del Norte $1,432,495 $37,427 $34,695 ($1,395,068) ($1,397,800)

California El Dorado $1,952,474 $794,787 $736,768 ($1,157,687) ($1,215,706)

California Fresno $1,329,531 $421,902 $391,103 ($907,629) ($938,428)

California Glenn $347,023 $11,939 $11,067 ($335,084) ($335,956)

California Humboldt $1,017,352 $24,836 $23,023 ($992,516) ($994,329)

California * Inyo $0 $458,567 $425,092

California Kern $209,316 $56,247 $52,141 ($153,069) ($157,175)

California Lake $479,420 $14,729 $13,654 ($464,691) ($465,766)

California Lassen $1,872,722 $215,838 $200,082 ($1,656,884) ($1,672,640)

California * Los Angeles $0 $1,480,189 $1,372,136

California Madera $538,083 $200,696 $186,045 ($337,387) ($352,038)

California Mariposa $304,290 $96,273 $89,245 ($208,017) ($215,045)

California Mendocino $334,229 $10,253 $9,505 ($323,976) ($324,724)

California Modoc $1,615,464 $87,386 $81,007 ($1,528,078) ($1,534,457)

California * Mono $0 $514,595 $477,030

California Monterey $17,397 $35,837 $33,221 $18,440 $15,824

California Nevada $372,410 $86,351 $80,047 ($286,059) ($292,363)

California Orange $795,746 $123,167 $114,176 ($672,579) ($681,570)

California * Placer $0 $226,120 $209,613

California Plumas $3,506,898 $72,423 $67,136 ($3,434,475) ($3,439,762)

California * Riverside $0 $341,519 $316,588

California * San Bernardino $0 $403,790 $374,313

California * San Diego $0 $629,246 $583,311

California * San Luis Obispo $0 $21,882 $20,285

California * Santa Barbara $0 $72,423 $67,136

California Shasta $1,938,921 $392,901 $364,219 ($1,546,020) ($1,574,702)

California Sierra $892,794 $192,156 $178,129 ($700,638) ($714,665)

California Siskiyou $4,478,836 $579,141 $536,864 ($3,899,695) ($3,941,972)

California Tehama $1,157,031 $98,109 $90,947 ($1,058,922) ($1,066,084)

California Trinity $3,734,471 $215,464 $199,735 ($3,519,007) ($3,534,736)

California Tulare $525,086 $219,592 $203,562 ($305,494) ($321,524)

California Tuolumne $1,238,401 $3,754,554 $3,480,471 $2,516,153 $2,242,070

California * Ventura $0 $67,691 $62,750

California Yuba $115,455 $17,991 $16,678 ($97,464) ($98,777)

$31,700,493 $12,390,930 $11,486,392 ($23,525,586) ($24,122,354)

* = County doesn’t take SRS



Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2014/15Balances through February

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund   

1100 154,765.00 155,965.00 61,729.92 93,235.84 999.24 Teachers Salaries

1120 5,152.00 1,560.00 1,560.00-Certificated Substitutes

1200 63,202.00 62,811.00 25,116.44 37,694.66 .10-Certificated Pupil Support Ser

1300 105,804.00 105,805.00 35,268.08 70,536.16 .76 Certificated Supervisor Admini

Total for Object 1000 328,923.00 324,581.00 122,114.44 203,026.66 560.10-

2100 98,489.00 64,769.00 27,764.36 41,411.64 4,407.00-Instructional Aides' Salaries

2200 5,478.00 9,496.00 3,785.17 5,980.44 269.61-Classified Support Salaries

2300 96,742.00 96,490.00 31,946.40 64,132.80 410.80 Classified Supervisors' Admini

2400 123,875.00 123,875.00 42,086.42 81,944.60 156.02-Clerical Technical Office Staf

2900 6,912.00 10,800.00 4,198.50 6,601.50 Other Classified Salaries

Total for Object 2000 331,496.00 305,430.00 105,582.35 197,667.98 2,179.67 

3101 31,145.00 28,823.00 10,843.76 17,912.24 67.00 STRS Certificated Positions

3102 368.00 344.00 137.60 206.40 .00 STRS Classified Positions

3201 76.51 76.51-PERS Certificated Positions

3202 49,655.00 48,397.00 16,732.96 32,161.91 497.87-PERS Classified Positions

3301 71.92 71.92-OASDI Certificated Positions

3302 19,518.00 17,229.00 6,164.27 11,607.60 542.87-OASDI Classified Positions

3311 4,990.00 4,546.00 1,711.56 2,839.10 4.66-Medicare Certificated Position

3312 4,622.00 4,087.00 1,464.08 2,751.87 128.95-Medicare Classified Positions

3401 84,284.00 84,340.00 30,714.48 48,724.48 4,901.04 Health & Welfare Benefits Cert

3402 82,198.00 82,212.00 26,991.48 51,188.77 4,031.75 Health & Welfare Benefits Clas

3501 178.00 164.00 61.08 101.58 1.34 SUI Certificated

3502 163.00 147.00 52.75 96.54 2.29-SUI Classified

3601 11,419.00 10,511.00 3,957.36 6,564.45 10.81-Workers' Compensation Certific

3602 10,595.00 9,452.00 3,385.10 6,362.39 295.49-Workers' Compensation Classifi

3901 26,768.00 26,768.00 26,768.00 Golden Handshake

Total for Object 3000 325,903.00 317,020.00 102,216.48 180,665.76 34,137.76 

4200 414.78 3,204.33 3,619.11-Library and Reference Material

4300 17,590.00 21,851.00 13,003.64 9,490.81 643.45-Materials and Supplies

4320 1,300.00 1,300.00 424.93 875.07 Custodial Supplies

4330 2,000.00 2,000.00 233.10 1,766.90 Office Supplies

4350 6,500.00 6,500.00 802.71 1,146.79 4,550.50 Vehicle Upkeep

4400 7,198.00 7,198.00 12,169.45 1,389.56 6,361.01-Noncapitalized Equipment

Total for Object 4000 34,588.00 38,849.00 26,390.58 15,889.52 3,431.10-

5100 35,724.00 56,198.00 27,165.20 4,624.65 24,408.15 Subagreements for Services

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2015, Period = 8, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 1 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  2 2015  7:52AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1120
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=1300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2100
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=2900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3101
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3102
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3201
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3202
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3301
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3302
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3311
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3312
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3401
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3402
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3501
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3502
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3601
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3602
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=3901
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4320
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4330
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4350
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=4400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5100


Account Object Summary-BalanceFiscal01a

Fiscal Year 2014/15Balances through February

Object Description
Account 

Balance
ExpenditureEncumbered

Revised

Budget

Adopted

Budget

Fund 01 - Gen Fund    (continued)

5200 16,342.00 16,452.00 4,087.01 11,688.02 676.97 Travel and Conference

5300 17,970.00 15,870.00 10,241.00 5,629.00 Dues and Membership

5400 10,450.00 9,300.00 9,218.00 82.00 Insurance

5500 9,200.00 9,200.00 1,171.72 2,112.07 5,916.21 Operation Housekeeping Service

5600 2,600.00 2,600.00 195.82 353.89 2,050.29 Rentals, Leases, Repairs, Nonc

5800 8,400.00 8,400.00 3,800.00 4,600.00 .00 Professional Consulting

5801 32,500.00 44,426.00 1,000.00 315.00 43,111.00 Legal Services

5803 500.00 500.00 200.00 300.00 Legal Publications

5805 593.00 593.00 270.00 323.00 Personnel Expense

5806 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 Negotiations

5808 1,500.00 1,500.00 838.72 560.42 100.86 Other Services & Fees

5810 293,628.00 402,604.00 136,969.79 153,167.12 112,467.09 Contracted Services

5899 2,517.30 1,130.34 3,647.64-SPJUSD to Reimburse

5900 2,100.00 2,100.00 410.63 1,689.37 Communications

Total for Object 5000 433,507.00 571,743.00 178,215.56 198,421.14 195,106.30 

6200 30,032.00 30,032.00 30,032.00 Building and Improvement of Bu

6400 6,300.00 13,100.00 13,089.11 10.89 Equipment

Total for Object 6000 36,332.00 43,132.00 .00 13,089.11 30,042.89 

7110 43,902.44- 43,902.44 County Tuition Inter Dist Agre

7141 50,778.00 50,778.00 Tuition, excess cost etc betwe

7281 150,000.00 150,000.00 .00 All Other Transfers to Distric

7310 .00 Direct Support/Indirect Costs

Total for Object 7000 .00 200,778.00 .00 106,097.56 94,680.44 

352,155.86 1,490,749.00 1,801,533.00 534,519.41 914,857.73 Total for Fund 01 and Expense accounts

Fund 16 - FOREST RES   

7211 340,100.00 .00 Transfers of Pass-through Rev

7619 60,017.00 .00 Other Authorized Interfund Tra

.00 400,117.00 .00 .00 .00 Total for Fund 16, Expense accounts and Object 7000

352,155.86 1,890,866.00 1,801,533.00 534,519.41 914,857.73 Total for Org 001 - Sierra County Office of Education

Filtered by User Permissions, (Org = 1, Online/Offline = N, Fiscal Year = 2015, Period = 8, Unposted JEs? = N, Assets and Liabilities? = N, 

Restricted Accts? = Y, Object = 1-7, SACS Fund? = N, Fund Page Break? = N, Obj Lvl = 4, Obj Digits = 1, Page Break? = N)

Selection

Page 2 of 2

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  2 2015  7:52AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5300
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5500
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5600
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5800
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5801
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5803
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5805
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5806
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5808
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5810
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5899
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=5900
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6200
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=6400
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7110
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7141
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7281
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=01&p8=Fund&p7=7310
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7211
http://ol5/reportlink/fiscal02a.rpt?p1=74492&p2=1&p3=16&p8=Fund&p7=7619




 

SCOE 

MINUTES 
 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEEETING OF THE  

SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

February 10, 2015 

Sierra County Office of Education, 109 Beckwith Rd., Room 4, Loyalton, CA 96118  

5 pm for Closed Session 

6 pm for Regular Session 

 

A.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

 President TIM DRISCOLL called the meeting to order at 5 pm. 

 

B.  ROLL CALL 

 

 PRESENT:  Mr.  Tim Driscoll, President 

    Ms. Sharon Dryden, Vice President – Arrived at 5:06 pm. 

     Ms. Patty Hall, Clerk 

    Mr.  Allen Wright, Member 

     Mr.  Mike Moore, Member 

 

 ABSENT:     None     

 

 VACANT:     None 

 

C. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA   

 HALL/MOORE 

 4/0 

 Absent:  DRYDEN  

 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR CLOSED SESSION 

 

 At this time, the meeting opened for any public comments regarding the Closed Session items.  No public 

citizens were present.  

 

E. CLOSED SESSION – 5:02 pm 

 MOORE/HALL 

 4/0 

 Absent:  DRYDEN (arrived at 5:06 pm) 

 

 The Board of Trustees, Superintendent Dr. Merrill M. Grant and Business Manager Rose Asquith moved 

into Closed Session to discuss the following items: 

 

1. Government Code § Government Code §54957.6, Conference with Labor Negotiators  

 Agency Negotiator for the Board:  Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 

 Employee Organizations:   

 Represented Employees: Sierra-Plumas Teachers’ Association 

 Unrepresented Employees:  Classified Employees 

      Confidential Employees  

 

F. RETURN TO OPEN SESSION – 6:00 pm. 

 

 ADJOURN FOR BREAK  

 



Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 10, 2015 
 

2 

SCOE 

MINUTES 

 

RECONVENE - 6:08 pm  

  

G. FLAG SALUTE 

 

REPORT OUT 

   Closed Session discussion consisted of the subject of negotiations with the above-listed employee 

groups. 

 
H. INFORMATION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 

1. Sierra County Office of Education and Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District 

Audit Presentation by Clay Singleton of SingletonAuman, PC, Certified Public 

Accountants 

 
2. Superintendent’s Report 

a. California County Superintendents Educational Services Association (CCSESA) – 

LCAP discussed extensively; latest budget implications and the effects on county offices 

of education; CCSESA’s new president, (Gary Jones, Modoc County). ACSA:  

leadership and programmatic improvement.   

b. Secure Rural Schools –The funding is not in the budget or a trailer bill. Our County 

Office of Education still receives a fraction of past funding.  

c. Community Forum Schedule 

Downieville School Wednesday, March 4, 2015 6:30 pm (date changed to 3/16) 

Loyalton High  Tuesday, March 17, 2015 6:30 pm 

Loyalton Elementary Wednesday, March 18, 2015 6:30 pm 

d. Small County Superintendents will meet with Tom Torlakson on March 9  

 

3. BUSINESS REPORT 

 Ms. Asquith presented the Board Report-Expenditures by Object 07/01/14 to 1/31/15. 

There were no comments or questions. 

 

4. STAFF REPORT 

 

5. SPTA REPORT 

 

6. BOARD MEMBER’S REPORT   

MOORE:  Reported that Secure Rural Schools is 16% of prior funding, resulting in 

approximately $400,000 loss. 

 DRISCOLL:  Went to San Francisco with Loyalton High School students to see You Tube 

office in San Francisco. 

 

7. PUBLIC COMMENT 

President DRISCOLL opened the meeting for public comment at 6:37 pm.    

There was no comment. 

President DRISCOLL closed the meeting for public comment at 6:37 pm. 

 

 

 



Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 10, 2015 
 

3 

SCOE 

MINUTES 

 

I.  CONSENT CALENDAR 

 

The following items were included in the consent calendar: 

1. Approval of minutes of the Regular Board meeting held January 13, 2015 

2. Approval of bill warrants for month of January 2015 

DRYDEN/HALL  

5/0 

   

J.  ACTION ITEMS 

 

1. NEW BUSINESS 

 

1415-057 Presentation of Sierra-Plumas Certificated Employees Proposal 2 (revision of the initial 

proposal) for 2014-2015 and 2015-2016 

Mrs. Janet McHenry gave a presentation of the revised proposal. 

 

1415-058 Presentation of Classified Employees Initial Proposal, Revision, for 2014-2015 and 2015-2016 

Dr. Grant explained the proposal on behalf of the Classified Employees. 

 

1415-059 Presentation of Confidential Employees Initial Proposal for 2015-2016 

Rose presented the proposal on behalf of the Confidential Employees. 

 

1415-060 Presentation of Classified Management Employees Initial Proposal for 2015-2016 

Dr. Grant explained the proposal on behalf of the Classified Employees. 

 

1415-061 Presentation of Administration Initial Proposal for 2015-2016 

Dr. Grant explained the proposal on behalf of the Administration Employees. 

 

1415-062 Employer Response to Sierra-Plumas Certificated Employees Proposal 2 for   

  2014-2015 and 2015-2016 

  DRISCOLL read the employer response. 

      WRIGHT / HALL 

5/0 

 

1415-063 Employer Response to Classified Employees Initial Proposal, Revision, for  

 2014-2015 

 DRISCOLL read the employer response. 

 MOORE / HALL 

 5/0 

 

1415-064 Approval of School Safety Plan, Version 6.0, 2015 

DRYDEN motioned to approve the current School Safety Plan with instructions to add an 

annual multi agency emergency drill directed by the Sierra County Sheriff’s Department 

/WRIGHT seconded. 

5/0 

 

1415-065 Approval of the 2015-2016 School Calendar, (Draft 2) 

No Motion. 

 



Sierra County Board of Education  
Regular Meeting Minutes 
February 10, 2015 
 

4 

SCOE 

MINUTES 

 

1415-066 Approval of Appointment of Sheriff Tim Standley, Sierra County Sheriff’s Department or 

designee, and Lisa Botzler, Sierra County CPS, as Members of the Student Attendance Review 

Board 

  MOORE/HALL 

  5/0 

 

1415-067 Approval of Administrative Regulation 3516, Emergency and Disaster Preparedness Plan, 

revision 

MOORE/HALL 

5/0 

 

K.  ADVANCED PLANNING 

 

Next Regular Board Meeting will be held on March 10, 2015, at Downieville School, Downieville, 

California. Closed Session will be held as needed at 4 pm and the Regular Board Meeting at 6:00 pm. 

 

Suggested Agenda Items 

 

Calendar 

Negotiations-Closed Session 

Second Interim 

 

L.    ADJOURNMENT 

 

Adjourned at 7:11 pm. 

MOORE/WRIGHT 

 

 

 

 

 __________________________   _______________________________  

 Patty Hall, Clerk     Dr. Merrill M. Grant, Superintendent 

        Secretary of the Board of Education 



Board ReportReqPay12a

Checks Dated 02/01/2015 through 02/28/2015

Pay to the Order of
Fund

Object

Check 

Date
Check Number

Expensed

Amount

Check

Amount

APEX SAW WORKS 01-430002/10/201500014108 238.04 

CCSESA 01-520002/10/201500014109 128.00 

MERRILL GRANT 01-520002/10/201500014110 192.38 

HAMPTON INN AND               SUITES 

WOODLAND

01-520002/10/201500014111 143.84 

HILTON SACRAMENTO ARDEN WEST 01-520002/10/201500014112 96.26 

HILTON SACRAMENTO ARDEN WEST 01-520002/10/201500014113 632.59 

LIBERTY UTILITIES CPEC 01-550002/10/201500014114 189.75 

LOZANO SMITH 01-520002/10/201500014115 55.00 

BARBARA MCKURTIS 01-510002/10/201500014116 873.81 

01-5810 7,097.16 6,223.35 

MIKE MOORE 01-520002/10/201500014117 28.75 

SIERRA VALLEY HOME CENTER 01-430002/10/201500014118 29.54 

TRI COUNTY SCHOOLS            INSURANCE 

GROUP

01-953502/10/201500014119 3,431.00 

76-9576 17,009.10 13,578.10 

U.S. BANK 01-430002/10/201500014120 104.12 

VOYAGER 01-435002/10/201500014121 43.35 

01-5200 34.86 

01-5899 214.18 135.97 

26,158.71 Total Number of Checks 14 

Fund Summary

Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount

County School Service Fund 14 12,580.61 01

Payroll Clearing 1 13,578.10 76

Net (Check Amount)

Less Unpaid Sales Tax Liability

Total Number of Checks 26,158.71 

.00 

26,158.71 

14 

Page 1 of 1

Generated for Adrienne Garza (ABALL), Mar  2 2015  7:54AM001 - Sierra County Office of Education

The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 

of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.



 

 

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
2015 – 2016 Proposed School Calendar – Draft #4 

Month Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat Special Days 
Teacher 

Days 
School 
Days 

AUG 

16 17 18 19 20 21 22  

3 

19 

23 24 25 26 27 28 29 27-28 Staff Development 

30 31      31 First Day of School 

SEP 

  1 2 3 4 5  

21 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 7 Labor Day Holiday 

13 14 15 16 17 18 19  

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 25 End of 1st Month 

27 28 29 30     

20 

OCT 

    1 2 3 2 Min. Day – PLC 

22 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10  

11 12 13 14 15 16 17  

18 19 20 21 22 23 24 23 End of 2nd Month 

25 26 27 28 29 30 31 29-30 Min. Day – End of 1st Quarter 

19 NOV 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7  

18 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 11 Veteran’s Day Holiday 

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 20 Min. Day – PLC 20 End of 3rd Month/1st Trimester 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 25 Min. Day 26-27 Thanksgiving Holiday 

18 

29 30         

DEC 

  1 2 3 4 5  

14 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12  

13 14 15 16 17 18 19 18 Min. Day 18 End of 4th Month 

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 21-1 Winter Break 

19 

27 28 29 30 31 1 2  

JAN 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9  

19 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16  

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 18 MLK Holiday 22 Min Day-PLC/ End of 2nd Quarter 

 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 29 End of 5th Month 

FEB 

31 1 2 3 4 5 6  

19 

18 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 8 Lincoln’s Birthday Holiday 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 15 President’s Day Holiday 

21 22 23 24 25 26 27 26 End of 6th Month 

28 29       

19 

MAR 

  1 2 3 4 5 4 Min. Day – PLC  4 End of 2nd Trimester 

18 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12  

13 14 15 16 17 18 19  

20 21 22 23 24 25 26 24 End of 7th Month 25 Snow Day 

27 28 29 30 31   28-1 Spring Break 

15 

APR 

     1 2  

20 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 8 Min. Day – PLC 8 End of 3rd Quarter 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16  

17 18 19 20 21 22 23 15 End of 8th Month 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30  

20 MAY 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7  

20 

8 9 10 11 12 13 14  

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 20 Min. Day – PLC 13 End of 9th Month 

22 23 24 25 26 27 28 27 Snow Day 

13 

29 30 31     30 Memorial Day Holiday 

JUN 

   1 2 3 4  

8 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 3 Last Day of School 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18  

182 180  Total Required Days 

 



scoe 2nd interim narrative 2014-2015 

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION 

2014-2015 Second Interim 

Presented March 10, 2015 

 

REVENUE 

Local Control Funding Formula  

The LCFF is funded by local property taxes, Education Protection Account (EPA) and State Aide.  The 

EPA ¼ additional sales tax expires at the end of 2016 and the increase to personal income tax for high 

income earners expires at the end of 2018.  County Offices will be fully funded this year.     Funds 

received must support the County’s Local Control Accountability Plan (LCAP), and spend the same level 

of funds for the ROP program.  Projected LCFF sources increased by $927 since the First Interim. 

 

Other State Revenue 

Restricted Other State Revenue increased by $9,140 since the First Interim for the following reason: 

 

       Favorable         

Funding Description            (Unfavorable) 

 Special Education   $9,140  

 

Federal and Local Revenue 

No change in resources since the First Interim. 

 

Other Resources 

Secure Rural Schools, Transfer In from Fund 16, in the amount of $13,360 (NEW). 

 

The chart below compares restricted & unrestricted revenue from the 2012-2013 Actual, 2013-2014 

Unaudited Actuals, and 2014-15 First Interim and Second Interim.   Total revenue increased by 23,427 

since the First Interim. 

 

Description 2012-2013  
Actuals 

2013-2014 
Unaudited 
 Actuals 

2014-2015 
Budget 

 

2014-2015 
First  

Interim 

2014-2015 
Second 
Interim 

LCFF $487,590 676,267 $  797,444 $797,034   $797,961 

Federal  559,883 185,690 155,411 154,051 0.00 

Other State 517,574 502,505 494,955 598,139 9,140 

Other Local 283,918 229,394 166,019 170,059 0.00 

Transfer-in SRS 63,176 56,916 60,017 0.00 13,360 

Total $1,912,141 $1,650,772 $1,673,846 $1,719,283 $1,742,710 

a 

 

$797,961 
46%

$154,051
9%

$607,279
35%

$170,059
9% $13,360

1%

Total Resources $1,742,710

LCFF

Federal

Other State



scoe 2nd interim narrative 2014-2015 
Page 2 of 3 

 

EXPENDITURES 

 

General Fund Expenditures 
Expenditures decreased by $28,718 since the First Interim. 

 

This chart compares restricted & unrestricted expenditures from the 2011-2012, 2012-2013 Unaudited 

Actuals, and 2014-15 First Interim and Second Interim. 
 

Description 2012-2013  

Actuals 

2013-2014 

Unaudited Actuals 

2014-2015 

Budget 

 

2014-2015 

First  

Interim 

2014-2015 

Second 

Interim 

Certificated $293,901 $336,904 $328,923 $324,581 $326,138 

Classified 336,223 342,354 331,496 305,430 302,736 

Benefits 307,122 307,999 325,903 317,020 290,230 

Books & Supplies 21,441 18,079 34,588 38,849 41,433 

Services & Operating 223,457 328,217 433,507 571,743 565,321 

Capital Outlay  39,431 36,332 43,132 43,132 

Other Outgo 618,228 248,011 0 200,778 203,825 

Total $1,800,372 $1,620,995 $1,490,749 $1,801,533 $1,772,815 

 
 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Fund Balance 

Actual and projected ending fund balance for the fiscal years 2012-2013 through 2016-2017.  See table 

below. 

 

Fiscal Year Amount 

2012-13 actuals 48,594   

2013-14 actual 43,584          

2014-15 projected        (30,105) 

2015-16 projected            183,157 

2016-17 projected 189,232 

 

$326,138
18%

$302,736
17%

$290,230
16%$41,433

2%

$565,321
32%

$43,132
3%

$203,825
12%

Total Expenditures $1,772,815

Certificated

Classified

Benefits

Books & Supplies

Services & Operating

Capital Outlay

Other Outgo



scoe 2nd interim narrative 2014-2015 
Page 3 of 3 

 

Actual and Projected Ending Fund Balance 

2012-13 $1,974,524 

2013-14 $2,061,912 

2014-15 $2,031,807 

2015-16 $2,214,964 

2016-17 $2,404,196 

 

Other Comments 

 

 A positive cash flow for fiscal year 2014-2015 with an ending cash balance of $2,240,832. 

 

 Reserve requirement is met for all three years. Positive Certification. 

 

 Assumes health and welfare benefits for certificated staff will be capped at $15,880.  Other 

employee health and welfare benefits are capped at $13,840. 

 

 Secure Rural Schools, aka Forest Receipts, 25% PILT payment of $13,360 is projected for each 

year.  

 

Personnel  FTE 

Certificated  3.60 

Administration  1.20 

Classified  4.80 

Confidential  3.00 

















































































































































POLICY GUIDESHEET 

December 2014 

Page 1 of 6 

 

Note: Descriptions below identify major revisions made in CSBA's sample board policies, administrative regulations, 

board bylaws, and/or exhibits.  Editorial changes have also been made.  Districts should review the sample materials and 

modify their own policies accordingly. 

 

 

AR 4112.4/4212.4/4312.4 - Health Examinations 

(AR revised) 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1667) which requires employees to complete a tuberculosis risk 

assessment and provides that a tuberculin skin test will only be necessary if risk factors are identified. Regulation 

also adds language on tuberculosis risk assessment/examination requirements for school bus drivers when the 

district contracts for transportation services and clarifies allowable exemptions from the tuberculosis risk 

assessment/examination requirements. 

 

AR/E 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check 

(AR revised; E added) 

AR 4112.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check (certificated) and AR 4212.5 - Criminal Record Check (classified) 

consolidated and triple coded. Regulation deletes references to outdated process based on fingerprint identification 

cards, reflects law requiring the district to notify the Department of Justice (DOJ) when an applicant/employee 

whose fingerprints are maintained by DOJ is not hired or is terminated, and reflects law requiring the district to 

notify an applicant/employee when it receives notification from DOJ of the applicant/employee's criminal record. 

Section on "Maintenance of Records" revised to reflect NEW LAW (SB 1461) which deletes requirement to 

annually notify DOJ of the identity of the custodian of records. 

 

Exhibit renumbered and retitled from E 4112.62/4212.62/4312.62 - Maintenance of Criminal Offender Records. 

 

AR/E 4112.62/4212.62/4312.62 - Maintenance of Criminal Offender Records 

(AR/E deleted) 

Regulation deleted and concepts moved into AR 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check. 
 

Exhibit renumbered and retitled as E 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check. 

 

AR 4117.4 - Dismissal 

(AR deleted) 

Regulation deleted and concepts moved into BP/AR 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action. 
 

BP/AR 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action 

(BP/AR revised) 

Policy retitled and updated to include board actions related to the dismissal of certificated employees, formerly in 

AR 4117.4 - Dismissal.  Policy reflects NEW LAW (AB 215) which allows notice of the board's intent to suspend 

or dismiss an employee to be given to the employee at any time of year except when the charge is unsatisfactory 

performance, requires any notice given outside of the instructional year to be served personally upon the 

employee, and addresses notification of an employee charged with egregious misconduct. 
 

 

Regulation retitled and updated to include requirements related to the dismissal of certificated employees, formerly 

in AR 4117.4 - Dismissal. Regulation reflects NEW LAW (AB 215) which amends the causes for which a 

certificated employee may be suspended or dismissed, establishes an alternative procedure for charges related 

solely to egregious misconduct, and amends the list of mandatory leave of absence offenses.  

 

BP/AR 5125 - Student Records 

(BP/AR revised) 

Mandated policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1442) which requires districts to notify students and 

parents/guardians and provide an opportunity for public input before adopting a program to gather or maintain 

safety-related information from students' social media activity. Policy also reflects NEW LAW (SB 1177) which, 



effective January 1, 2016, will prohibit an online/mobile operator from selling or disclosing student information or 

using student information to target advertising or amass a profile about a student. Policy reflects NEW LAW (AB 

1584) which mandates districts entering into a contract with a third party for the digital storage, management, and 

retrieval of student records to adopt policy allowing such contracts. 

  
Mandated regulation reflects NEW LAW (AB 2160) which requires districts to submit the grade point average of 

all 12th-graders to the Cal Grant program unless a student opts out, and NEW LAW (AB 1068, 2013) which 

authorizes the disclosure of records to students age 14 years and older who are homeless and unaccompanied 

minors, persons who complete a caregiver's authorization affidavit, and caseworkers or other agency 

representatives legally responsible for the care and protection of a student. New section added to reflect 

requirements of NEW LAW (AB 1442) for districts that choose to adopt a program to gather or maintain 

information from students' social media activity related to school or student safety. 

 
AR 5141 - Health Care and Emergencies 

(AR revised) 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2217) which clarifies that employees and districts will not be liable 

for civil damages resulting from the use of an automated external defibrillator (AED) if they comply with specified 

legal requirements. Regulation expanded to reflect requirements related to a written plan, maintenance and testing 

of the AED, and the provision of information and training to employees. 

 

AR 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions 

(AR revised) 

Regulation updated to add definitions of epinephrine auto-injector and anaphylaxis and to reflect NEW LAW (SB 

1266) which requires districts to provide emergency epinephrine auto-injector(s) to each school site, requires 

annual notice to staff requesting volunteers, and deletes requirements for a district plan. 

 

BP/AR 5141.4 - Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting 

(BP/AR revised) 

Policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 2016) which authorizes districts to provide students with instruction in 

sexual abuse and sexual assault awareness, NEW LAW (AB 2560) which requires applicants for a new or 

renewed credential to sign a statement that they understand their obligations as mandated reporters, and NEW 

LAW (AB 1432) which mandates staff training regarding the duties of mandated reporters. 

 

Regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 1775) which amends the definition of sexual exploitation and 

NEW LAW (AB 1432) which requires districts to provide for annual training of mandated reporters.  Revised 

regulation also expands the list of mandated reporters to include athletic coaches, athletic administrators, and 

athletic directors and reflects current law which provides that a student's homelessness or status as an 

unaccompanied minor is not a reason for reporting child abuse or neglect.  

 

BP/AR 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process 

(BP/AR revised) 

Mandated policy updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 420) which prohibits districts from expelling any student, 

and from suspending students in grades K-3, for disruption or willful defiance. Policy also revised to include 

material formerly in AR related to board authority to expel and to delete material related to requiring 

parents/guardians to attend a portion of the school day when their child is removed from class for specified 

behaviors. 

 
Mandated regulation updated to reflect NEW LAW (AB 420) which prohibits districts from expelling any student, 

and from suspending students in grades K-3, for disruption or willful defiance. Updated regulation reflects NEW 

LAW (AB 1806) which requires notification of the district's liaison for homeless students when the student being 

considered for expulsion is a homeless student and NEW LAW (SB 1111) which provides that, if a hearing officer 

or administrative panel does not recommend expulsion, a student must be permitted to return to the classroom 

instructional program from which the expulsion referral was made.  Regulation deletes material related to 

requiring parents/guardians to attend a portion of the school day when their child is removed from class for 

specified behaviors. 



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation

All Personnel AR 4112.4(a)
4212.4

HEALTH EXAMINATIONS 4312.4

Tuberculosis Tests

No applicant shall be initially employed by the county/district, or employed under contract, in a
classified or certificated position unless, within the past 60 days, he/she has submitted to a
tuberculosis risk assessment within the past 60 days and, if tuberculosis risk factors are identified,
has submitted to an intradermal tuberculin skin test or other approved tuberculin test and, if that
test was tuberculosis examination to determine that he/she is free of infectious tuberculosis. If the
results of the examination are positive, has subsequently obtained the applicant shall obtain an x-
ray of the lungs. The At his/her discretion, an applicant shall may choose to submit to the
examination instead of the risk assessment.  (Education Code 49406)

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)
(cf. 4112 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment)
(cf. 4119.41/4219.41/4319.41 - Employees with Infectious Disease)
(cf. 4212 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment)

Prior to employment by the county/district, an applicant shall submit a certificate from an
authorized health care provider indicating stating that he/she is the applicant was assessed and/or
examined and found to be free of active infectious tuberculosis. (Education Code 49406; 5 CCR
5503)

The cost of the pre-employment tuberculosis examination shall be paid by the applicant.

An applicant who was previously employed in another California school county/district or private
or parochial school may fulfill shall be deemed to have fulfilled the tuberculosis
examinationtesting requirement either by producing if he/she produces a certificate showing that
he/she was examined found to be free of infectious tuberculosis within the last four years and
found to be free of active tuberculosis or by having 60 days of initial hire or if his/her previous
employer verifyverifies that it has a certificate on file a certificate which contains that evidence.
showing that the applicant is free from infectious tuberculosis. (Education Code 49406)

EveryThereafter, each county/district employee who tests negative was found free of infectious
tuberculosis shall undergo a tuberculosis risk assessment, and an examination whenever risk
factors are identified, at least once every four years, or more often if so directed when required
by the Governing Board of Education upon recommendation of the county health officer, for as
long as the employee's test remains negative.  An.  However, once an employee withhas a
documented positive test for tuberculosis infection followed by an x-ray, he/she shall no longer
be required to submit to the examinationtuberculosis risk assessment but shall be referred to the



2

county health officer within 30 days of the examination to determine the need for follow-up care.
(Education Code 49406)

Tuberculosis tests for employees shall be provided by the county/district or at county/district
expense.  (Education Code 44839, 45122, 49406)

The cost of the pre-employment tuberculosis risk assessment and/or examination shall be paid by
the applicant, unless the Board has determined that the county/district will reimburse an applicant
who is subsequently hired by the county/district. The county/district shall reimburse the employee
for the cost, if any, of subsequent tuberculosis risk assessments and examinations. The
county/district may provide for the risk assessment and examination or may establish a reasonable
fee for the examination that is reimbursable to the employee.  (Education Code 49406)

Whenever the county/district contracts for the transportation of students, the contract shall require
that all drivers who will be transporting students complete the tuberculosis risk assessment and, if
indicated, the examination for infectious tuberculosis within 60 days of initial hire. (Education
Code 49406)

(cf. 3312 - Contracts)
(cf. 3540 - Transportation)
(cf. 3542 - School Bus Drivers)

The following applicants or employees shall be exempted from the requirement to submit to a
tuberculosis risk assessment and/or examination:  (Education Code 49406)

1. An applicant/employee who files an affidavit stating that he/she adheres to the faith or
teachings of a well-recognized religious sect, denomination, or organization and, in
accordance with its creed, tenets, or principles, depends for healing upon prayer in the
practice of religion and that, to the best of his/her knowledge orand belief, he/she is free
from active infectious tuberculosis. In order to exempt the individual, the Board shall
determine by resolution, after a hearing, that the health of students would not be
jeopardized.  (Education Code 49406)

The Superintendent or designee may exempt from Such an exemption shall be allowed
only if the Board determines by resolution, after a hearing, that the health of students would
not be jeopardized. If at any time there is probable cause to believe that the
applicant/employee is inflicted with infectious tuberculosis testing requirement, he/she
may be excluded from service until the Board is satisfied that he/she is not afflicted.

(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)

2. A classified employees employee who are is employed for less than a school year if
theirand whose functions do not require frequent or prolonged contact with students.
(Education Code 49406)

3. A pregnant employee who has positive results on a tuberculosis skin test, in which case she
shall be exempted from the requirement that a positive tuberculin skin test be followed by



3

to follow up with an x-ray of the lungs, for a period not to exceed 60 days following
terminationafter the end of the pregnancy.  (Education Code 49406)

4. A private contracted driver who transports students infrequently without prolonged contact
with students

Medical Certification for Communicable Diseases for

Examination of Certificated Employees for Disabling Diseases

To fill a certificated position with an applicant who has not previously been employed in a
certificated position in California, or with a retirant who has not been employed as a retirant, the
county/district shall have on file a medical certification indicating(cf. 4117.14/4317.14 - Postretirement

Employment) The medical certification shall certify that the applicant or retirant is free from any
disabling disease which would render him/her unfit to instruct or associate with children.
(Education Code 44839, 44839.5)
(cf. 4117.14/4317.14 - Postretirement Employment)

The certificate shall be completed and submitted directly to the county/district by an authorized
health care provider. The medical examination referred toreferenced in the certificate must have
been conducted within six months of the date that the certificate is filed.  (Education Code 44839,
44839.5; 5 CCR 5503)

(cf. 4119.41/4219.41/4319.41 - Employees with Infectious Disease)

Applicants and retirants shall pay for the cost of obtaining the medical certification.  (Education
Code 44849, 44839.5)

Certificated employees and/or retirants to may be required to periodically undergo, at
county/district expense, a periodic medical examination pursuant to Education Code 44839 or
44839.5 to determine that they are free from any communicable disease making them unfit to
instruct or associate with children.  (Education Code 44839, 44839.5)

Mental Examination for Certificated Employees

Whenever the Board is considering the suspension or transfer of a certificated employee based on
its reasonable belief that the employee is suffering from mental illness of such a degree as to render
him/her incompetent to perform his/her duties.  In such a case, the district shall follow the process
specified in Education Code 44942 and the district's collective bargaining agreement, including
the opportunity for the employee to be examined by a panel of psychiatrists or psychologists., the
employee shall be offered the opportunity of being examined by a three-member panel of
psychiatrists and psychologists in accordance with Education Code 44942. The employee shall
select the members of the panel from a list of psychiatrists and psychologists provided by the
county/district. The examination shall be conducted, at county/district expense, within 15 days of
the ordered suspension or transfer. The employee shall submit to the examination, but shall also
be entitled to present a report of any psychiatrist, psychologist, or physician of his/her own choice.
(Education Code 44942)



4

(cf. 4032 - Reasonable Accommodation)
(cf. 4114 - Transfer
(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
44839  Medical certificate; periodic medical examination
44839.5  Requirements for employment of retirant
44932  Grounds for dismissal of permanent employee
44942  Suspension or transfer of certificated employee on ground of mental illness
45122  Physical examinations
49406  Examination for tuberculosis
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE
2700-2838  Nurses
3500-3546  Physician assistants
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
121525  Private and parochial school employees, examination for tuberculosis
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
5502  Filing of notice of physical examination for employment of retired persons
5503  Physical examination for employment of retired persons
5504  Medical certification procedures
COURT DECISIONS
Doe v. Lincoln Unified School County/district, (2010) 188 Cal.App.4th 758
Leonel v. American Airlines, Inc., (2005) 400 F.3d. 702
Raven v. Oakland Unified School County/district, (1989) 213 Cal.App.3d 1347

Management Resources:
WEB SITES
California Department of Public Health:  http://www.cdph.ca.gov
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention: http://www.cdc.gov
Public Health Institute: http://www.phi.org
U.S. Food and Drug Administration: http://www.fda.gov

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised: June 14, 2011

December 2014
March 10, 2015 Loyalton, California

http://www.cdph.ca.gov
http://www.cdc.gov
http://www.phi.org
http://www.fda.gov


1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation
Criminal Record Check

All Personnel AR 4112.5(a)
4212.5

CRIMINAL RECORD CHECK 4312.5

Applicants for Employment

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that each person to be employed submits fingerprints,
either electronically through the Live Scan system or on fingerprint identification cards, for
processing by the Department of Justice.  If the district is using the Live Scan system, the
Superintendent or designee shall also provide the applicant with a Live Scan request form and a
list of nearby Live Scan locations.

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that no person is hired in a position requiring
certification qualifications or supervising positions requiring certification qualifications
The Superintendent or designee shall not hire or retain in employment, in a certificated or classified
position, a person who has been convicted of a violent or serious felony as listeddefined in Penal
Code 667.5(c) or 1192.7(c), a controlled substance offense as defined in Education Code 44011,
or a sex offense as defined in Education Code 44010. However, the Superintendent or designee
shall not deny or terminate employment if:  (Education Code 44830.1, 44836, 45122.1, 45123)

1. The conviction for a violent or serious felony, controlled substance offense, or sex offense
is reversed and the person is acquitted of the offense in a new trial or the charges against
the person are dismissed, unless thatthe sex offense for which the conviction is dismissed
pursuant to Penal Code 1203.4 involves a victim who was a minor.

2. A person convicted of a violent or serious felony has obtained a certificate of rehabilitation
and or a pardon. (Education Code 44830.1)

3. A person who has been convicted of a serious felony, that is not also a violent felony,
proves to the sentencing court that he/she has been rehabilitated for purposes of school
employment for at least one year.

4. A person who has been convicted of a controlled substance offense is applying for or is
employed in a certificated position and has a credential issued by the Commission on
Teacher Credentialing.

5. A person who has been convicted of a controlled substance offense is applying for or is
employed in a classified position and has been determined by the Governing Board, from
the evidence presented, to have been rehabilitated for at least five years.

(cf. 4112 - Appointment and Conditions of Employment)
(cf. 4112.2 - Certification)



2

(cf. 4118 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)
(cf.
However, a4127/4227/4327 - Temporary Athletic Team Coaches)
(cf. 4218 - Dismissal/Suspension/Disciplinary Action)

A certificated employee may be hired by the district, without obtaining a criminal record summary,
if that employee is employed as a certificated employee in another California school district and
became a permanent employee of another California school district as of October 1, 1997.
(Education Code 44830.1, 44836)

(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel)

Temporary Certificate of Clearance

The Superintendent or designee shall not issue a temporary certificate of clearance if the applicant
to a person whose application for a credential, certificate, or permit is being processed by the
Commission on Teacher Credentialing if that person has been convicted of a violent or serious
felony, unless the person is otherwise exempt pursuant to Education Code 44332.6 or 44830.1.
(Education Code 44332.5, 44332.6)

Pre-Employment Record Check

The Superintendent or designee shall require each person to be employed by the district to submit
his/her fingerprints electronically through the Live Scan system so that a criminal record check
may be conducted by the Department of Justice (DOJ).  The Superintendent or designee shall
provide the applicant with a Live Scan request form and a list of nearby Live Scan locations.

When a person is applying for a classified position, the Superintendent or designee shall request
that the DOJ also obtain a criminal record check through the Federal Bureau of Investigation
whenever the applicant meets one of the following conditions:  (Education Code 45125)

1. The applicant has obtained a certificate of rehabilitation and pardon.  (Education Code
44332, 44332.5, 44332.6)not resided in California for at least one year immediately
preceding the application for employment.

2. The applicant has resided in California for more than one year, but less than seven years,
and the DOJ has ascertained that the person was convicted of a sex offense
where the victim was a minor or a drug offense where an element of the offense is either
the distribution to or the use of a controlled substance by a minor.

The Superintendent or designee may issue a temporary certificate of clearance without obtaining
a criminal record summary to an employee currently and continuously shall immediately notify
the DOJ when an applicant who has submitted his/her fingerprints to the DOJ is not subsequently
employed by athe district within the county who is serving under a valid credential and has applied
for a renewal of that credential or for an additional credential.  (Education.  (Penal Code 44332.6)



3

The Superintendent or designee may issue a temporary certificate of clearance to a person who has
been convicted of a serious felony that is not also a violent felony, if that person can prove to the
sentencing court of the offense in question, by clear and convincing evidence, that he/she has been
rehabilitated for the purposes of school employment for at least one year.  (Education Code
44332.611105.2)

Subsequent Arrest Notification

The Superintendent or designee shall enter into a contract with the DOJ to receive notification of
subsequent arrests resulting in conviction of any person whose fingerprints have been submitted
to the DOJ.  (Education Code 44830.1, 45125; Penal Code 11105.2)

Upon telephone or email notification by the DOJ that a current certificated employee who is a
temporary employee, substitute employee, or probationary employee serving before March 15 of
the employee's his/her second probationary year if he/she has been convicted of a violent or serious
felony the Superintendent or designee shall immediately place that employee on leave without pay.
(Education Code 44830.1, 45122.1)

(cf. 4116 - Probationary/Permanent Status)
(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel)

When the district receives written electronic notification by the DOJ of the fact of conviction from
the Department of Justice, the Superintendent temporary employee, substitute employee, or
designee probationary employee serving before March 15 of his/her second probationary year shall
terminate that employee without regard to any other procedure for termination specified in the
Education Code or district procedures, be terminated automatically unless that employee has
received a certificate of rehabilitation and a pardon.  (Education Code 44830.1)

If the employee challenges the Department of Justice DOJ record and the Department of Justice
DOJ withdraws in writing its notification in writing. Upon receipt of the written withdrawal of
notification by the DOJ, the Superintendent or designee shall immediately reinstate that employee
with full restoration of salary and benefits for the period of time from the suspension without pay
to the reinstatement. if the employee is still employed by the district. (Education Code 44830.1,
45122.1)

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately notify the DOJ whenever a person whose
fingerprints are maintained by the DOJ is terminated.  (Penal Code 11105.2)

Notification of Applicant/Employee

The Superintendent or designee shall expeditiously furnish a copy of any DOJ notification to the
applicant or employee to whom it relates if the information is a basis for an adverse
employment decision. The copy shall be delivered in person or to the last contact information
provided by the applicant or employee.  (Penal Code 11105, 11105.2)

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)



4

Maintenance of Records

The Superintendent shall designate at least one custodian of records who shall be responsible for
the security, storage, dissemination, and destruction of all Criminal Offender Record Information
(CORI) furnished to the district and shall serve as the primary contact for the DOJ for any related
issues.  (Penal Code 11102.2)

An employee designated as custodian of records shall receive a criminal background check
clearance from the DOJ prior to serving in that capacity.  (Penal Code 11102.2)

The custodian of records shall sign and return to the DOJ the Employee Statement Form
acknowledging his/her understanding of the laws prohibiting misuse of CORI.  In addition, the
custodian of records shall ensure that any individual with access to CORI has on file a signed
Employee Statement Form.

To ensure its confidentiality, CORI shall be accessible only to the custodian of records and shall
be kept in a locked file separate from other files.  CORI shall be used only for the purpose for
which it is requested and its contents shall not be disclosed or reproduced.  (Education Code
44830.1, 45125)

(cf. 4119.23/4219.23/4319.23 - Unauthorized Release of Confidential/Privileged Information)
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information)

Once a hiring determination is made, the applicant's CORI shall be destroyed to the extent that the
identity of the individual can no longer be reasonably ascertained. (Education Code 44830.1,
45125; 11 CCR 708)

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately notify the DOJ whenever a designated custodian
of records ceases to serve in that capacity.  (Penal Code 11102.2)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
44010 Sex offense
44011  Controlled substance offense

44332-44332.6 Temporary certificate
44332.5 Registering certificates by certain districts

44332.6  Criminal record check, county board of educationclearance
44346.1 Applicants for credential, conviction of a violent or serious felony
44830.1 Certificated employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony
44830.2 Certificated employees; interagency agreement for sharing criminal record information
44836 Conviction of a sex or controlled substance offense
44932  Grounds for dismissal of permanent certificated employees
45122.1 Classified  employees, conviction of a violent or serious felony
45125  Use of personal identification cards to ascertain conviction of crime
45125.01 Classified employees; interagency agreementsagreement for sharing criminal record
information
45125.5  Automated records check
45126  Duty of Department of Justice to furnish information
49024  Activity supervisor clearance certificates
PENAL CODE



5

667.5 Prior prison terms, enhancement of prison terms
667.5  Violent felonies
1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation Serious felonies
1203.4  Dismissal of conviction
11075-11081 Criminal record dissemination
11102.2  Maintenance of criminal offender records; custodian of records
11105 Access to criminal history information
11105.2 Subsequent arrest notification
11105.3  Record of conviction involving sex crimes, drug crimes or crimes of violence; availability to
employer for applicants for positions with supervisory or disciplinary power over minors
11140-11144  Furnishing of state criminal history information
13300-13305  Local summary criminal history information
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 11

703 Release of criminal offender record information
701-708 Destruction of criminal Criminal offender record information
720-724  Incomplete criminal history information
994-994.15 Certification of individuals who take fingerprint impressions
COURT DECISIONS
Central Valley Chapter of the 7th Step Foundation Inc. v. Evelle J. Younger, (1989) 214 Cal. App. 3d 145

Management Resources:
WEB SITES
Office of the Attorney General, Department of Justice/Attorney General's Office, Background Checks:

http://www.caag.stateoag.ca.us/appgov/fingerprints

CSBA:  http://www.csba.org

Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised:     March 10, 2015 Loyalton, California

http://www.caag.stateoag.ca.us/appgov/fingerprints
http://www.csba.org


Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation

All Personnel E 4112.5(a)
4212.5

CRIMINAL RECORD CHECK 4312.5

EMPLOYEE STATEMENT FORM
USE OF CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION

As an employee/volunteer of Sierra-Plumas Joint Unified School District, you may have access to confidential criminal record
information which is controlled by state and federal statutes.  Misuse of such information may adversely affect the individual's civil
rights and violate constitutional rights of privacy.  Penal Code 502 prescribes the penalties relating to computer crimes.  Penal Code
11105 and 13300 identify who has access to criminal history information and under what circumstances it may be disseminated.
Penal Code 11140-11144 and 13301-13305 prescribe penalties for misuse of criminal history information.  Government Code 6200
prescribes felony penalties for misuse of public records.  Penal Code 11142 and 13300 state:

"Any person authorized by law to receive a record or information obtained from a record who knowingly furnishes
the record or information to a person not authorized by law to receive the record or information is guilty of a
misdemeanor."

Civil Code 1798.53, Invasion of Privacy, states:

"Any person who intentionally discloses information, not otherwise public, which they know or should reasonably
know was obtained from personal or confidential information maintained by a state agency or from records within
a system of records maintained by a federal government agency, shall be subject to a civil action, for invasion of
privacy, by the individual."

CIVIL, CRIMINAL, AND ADMINISTRATIVE PENALTIES:

*Penal Code 11141: DOJ furnishing to unauthorized person (misdemeanor)
*Penal Code 11142: Authorized person furnishing to other (misdemeanor)
*Penal Code 11143: Unauthorized person in possession (misdemeanor)
*California Constitution, Article I, Section 1 (Right to Privacy)
* Civil Code 1798.53, Invasion of Privacy
*Title 18 USC 641, 1030, 1951, and 1952

Any employee who is responsible for such misuse may be subject to immediate dismissal. Violations of this law may result in

criminal and/or civil action.

I HAVE READ THE ABOVE AND UNDERSTAND THE POLICY REGARDING MISUSE OF CRIMINAL RECORD
INFORMATION.

Signature Date

Printed Name Title

Name of District

PLEASE NOTE: Do not return this form to the DOJ. Your Custodian of Records should maintain these forms.

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
approved: March 10, 2015 Loyalton, California



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation

Certificated Personnel

AR 4118

DISMISSAL/SUSPENSION/DISCIPLINARY ACTION

Suspension Without Pay

When a permanent certificated employee's unprofessional conduct is not considered serious
enough to warrant dismissal, he/she may be suspended without pay on grounds of unprofessional
conduct,)

Causes for Suspension or Dismissal

A certificated employee with permanent status may be suspended without pay or dismissed only
for one or more of the following causes:  (Education Code 44932)

1. Immoral conduct including, but not limited to, egregious misconduct that is the basis for a
sex offense or controlled substance offense described in Education Code 44010 or 44011
or child abuse and neglect as described in Penal Code 11165.2-11165.6

2. Unprofessional conduct

3. Commission, aiding, or advocating the commission of acts of criminal syndicalism

4. Dishonesty

5. Unsatisfactory performance

6. Evident unfitness for service

7. Physical or mental condition unfitting the employee to instruct or associate with children

(cf. for a specified period during4112.4/4212.4/4312.4 - Health Examinations)

8. Persistent violation of or refusal to obey the school year as an alternative to dismissal
following procedures designated in Education Code 44948.3.laws or regulations of the
state or district

Prior to any action on charges leading to suspension without pay on the grounds of unprofessional
conduct, the Superintendent or designee shall give the employee written notice.  This written notice
shall:  (Education Code 44938)



2

1.  Indicate the nature of the employee's unprofessional conduct

2.  Cite specific instances of unprofessional behavior

3.  Give the employee a 45-day opportunity to correct the misconduct and overcome the grounds
for the charge

4.  Include the evaluation made pursuant to Education Code 44660-44665, if applicable
9. Conviction of a felony or of any crime involving moral turpitude

10. Violation of Education Code 51530 or Government Code 1028 (advocacy of communism)

11. Alcoholism or other drug abuse that makes the employee unfit to instruct or associate with
children

(cf. 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision)

An employee may be suspended or dismissed on grounds of unprofessional conduct consisting of
acts or omissions not listed above if the charge specifies instances of behavior deemed to constitute
unprofessional conduct.  (Education Code 44933)

An employee shall not be suspended, disciplined, reassigned, transferred, dismissed, or  otherwise
retaliated against solely for acting to protect a student, or for refusing to infringe on a student's
protected conduct, when that student is exercising his/her free speech or press rights pursuant to
Education Code 48907 or 48950.  (Education Code 48907, 48950)

(cf. 4119.1/4219.1/4319.1 - Civil and Legal Rights)
(cf. 5145.2 - Freedom of Speech/Expression)

Suspension/Dismissal of Permanent Employees

Compulsory Leave

When a permanent certificated employee is charged with one or more of the offenses specified in
the section "Causes for Suspension or Dismissal" above, the following procedures shall apply:

1. The person preparing a written statement of charges that there is cause to suspend or
dismiss an employee shall submit the signed statement to the Governing Board.  (Education
Code 44934, 44934.1)

2. Upon receiving notice of the Board's intent to suspend or dismiss him/her, the employee
may request a hearing on the matter. The hearing shall be conducted by the Commission
on Professional Competence, except that any case involving only egregious misconduct
shall be heard instead by an administrative law judge and, in any other case, the hearing
may be conducted by an administrative law judge when both the district and employee so
stipulate. (Education Code 44943, 44944, 44944.05, 44944.1, 44944.3)



3

3. Except when an employee is charged solely with egregious misconduct, the district may
amend the charges less than 90 days before the hearing only upon showing of good cause
and upon approval of the administrative law judge.  (Education Code 44934)

4. The employee shall be suspended or dismissed when the Commission on Professional
Competence or administrative law judge has issued its decision supporting suspension or
dismissal or, if the employee did not request a hearing, at the expiration of 30 days after
service of the notice of intent to suspend or dismiss. (Education Code 44941, 44943, 44944)

The Superintendent or designee shall immediately place on compulsorynotify the Commission on
Teacher Credentialing when the employment status of a certificated employee has been changed
as a result of alleged misconduct or while an allegation of misconduct is pending. (Education Code
44030.5, 44242.5, 44940; 5 CCR 80303)

(cf. 4117.7/4317.7 - Employment Status Reports)

Suspension/Dismissal of Probationary Employees

The district may choose not to rehire probationary employees for the following school year without
giving a statement of reasons provided that it is done in accordance with AR 4117.6 -Decision Not
to Rehire and proper notice is provided by March 15.  (Education Code 44929.21, 44929.23)

(cf. 4116 - Probationary/Permanent Status)
(cf. 4117.6 - Decision Not to Rehire)

During the school year, probationary employees in their first or second year of service may be
dismissed only for one or more of the causes listed in items #1-11 in the section "Causes for
Suspension or Dismissal" above or for unsatisfactory performance determined pursuant to
Education Code 44660-44665.  (Education Code 44948.2, 44948.3)

Whenever a first- or second-year probationary employee is so charged, the following procedures
shall apply for dismissing the employee:  (Education Code 44948.3)

1. The Superintendent or designee shall give 30 days' prior written notice of dismissal, not
later than March 15 in the case of second-year probationary employees. The notice shall
include a statement of the reasons for the dismissal, notice of the opportunity to appeal,
and, if the cause is unsatisfactory performance, a copy of the evaluation conducted pursuant
to Education Code 44664.

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)

2. Upon receipt of the notice of dismissal, the employee may be dismissed if no request for a
hearing is submitted to the Board within 15 days.

3. If a hearing is requested, the district may arrange for the appointment of an administrative
law judge to conduct the hearing and to recommend a decision to the Board.



4

A probationary employee may be suspended without pay for a specified period of time as an
alternative to dismissal. (Education Code 44948.3)

Compulsory Leave of Absence

Upon being informed by law enforcement that a certificated employee has been charged with a
"mandatory leave of absence offense," the Superintendent or designee shall immediately place the
employee on a leave of absence.  A mandatory leave of absence offense includes:  (Education
Code 44830.1, 44940)

1. Any sex offense as defined in Education Code 44010

2. 2. Violation or attempted violation of Penal Code 187 (murder)

3. Any offense involving the unlawful sale, use, or exchange to minors of controlled
substances as listed in Health and Safety Code 11054, 11055, and 11056, with the
exception of

(cf. 4117.7/4317.7 - Employment Status Reports)

The Superintendent or designee may place on an immediate compulsory leave of absence a
certificated employee who is charged with an "optional leave of absence offense," defined as a
controlled substance offense specified in Education Code 44011 and Health and Safety Code
11357-11361, 11363, 11364, and 11370.1 except as it relates to marijuana, mescaline, peyote, or
tetrahydrocannabinols.  (Education Code 44940)

Upon receipt of notification from the Department of Justice by telephone that a current temporary
employee, substitute employee, or probationary employee serving before March 15 of the If an
employee is charged with an offense that falls into both the mandatory and optional leave of
absence definitions, the offense shall be treated as a mandatory leave of absence offense.
(Education Code 44940)

An employee's second probationary year has been convicted of a violent or serious felony, that
employee shall be immediately placed on leave without pay. (Education Code 44830.1)

(cf. 4112.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check)

Upon receipt of written electronic notification of the conviction from the Department of Justice
the employee, as specified above, shall be terminated automatically, and without regard to any
other termination procedure.  (Education Code 44830.1)

The Board also may require an immediate compulsory leave of absence when a certificated
employee is charged with "an for a mandatory or optional leave of absence offense" as specified
in law.  (Education Code 44940)

The compulsory leave may extend for not more than 10 days after the entry of judgment in the
criminal proceedings. However, the Board may extend a certificated employee's compulsory leave



5

by givingmay be extended if the Board gives notice, within 10 days after the entry of judgment in
the proceedings, that the employee will be dismissed inwithin 30 days from the date of service of
the notice unless he/she demands a hearing.  (Education Code 44940, 44940.5)

(cf. 4117.4 - Dismissal)

The Board shall report to the Commission on Teacher Credentialing (formerly the Commission for
Teacher Preparation and Licensing) any action it takes in connection with extending a compulsory
leave beyond 10 days.  (Education Code 44940.5)

During the period of compulsory leave, the employee shall be madecompensated in accordance
with Education Code 44940.5.

Upon receipt of telephone or electronic notification from the Department of Justice that a current
temporary, substitute, or probationary employee serving before March 15 of his/her second
probationary year has been convicted of a violent or serious felony, the Superintendent or designee
shall immediately place the employee on leave without pay. Upon receipt of electronic notification
of the conviction from the Department of Justice, such employee shall be automatically terminated
and without regard to any other termination procedure. (Education Code 44830.1)

(cf. 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check)

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Regulation
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
Revised:    March 10, 2015 Loyalton, California



Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy
Suspension/Disciplinary Action

Certificated Personnel BP 4118(a)

DISMISSAL/SUSPENSION/DISCIPLINARY ACTION

The Board of Education desires that The Governing Board expects all employees to perform their
jobs satisfactorily, exhibit professional and appropriate conduct, and serve as positive role models
both at school and in the community. Unacceptable A certificated employee may be disciplined
for conduct shall be subject to disciplinary action or performance in accordance with law, the
applicable collective bargaining agreement, Board policy, and administrative
regulationsregulation.

(cf. 4000 - Concepts and Roles)
(cf. 4112.5/4212.5/4312.5 - Criminal Record Check)
(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)
(cf. 4141/4241 - Collective Bargaining Agreement)

The Superintendent or designeeDisciplinary action shall develop administrative regulations that
identify types of misconduct be based on the particular facts and possible consequences.
circumstances involved and the severity of the conduct or performance. Disciplinary actions may
include, but are not be limited to, verbal warnings, written warnings, reassignment, suspension,
freezing or reduction of wages, compulsory leave and, or dismissal.

(cf. 4114 - Transfers)

The Superintendent or designee may take disciplinary action as he/she deems appropriate in light
of the particular facts and circumstances involved.  He/she shall ensure that disciplinary actions
are taken in a consistent, nondiscriminatory manner and are appropriately documented.

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)
(cf. 4030 - Nondiscrimination in Employment)
(cf. 40324031 - Complaints Concerning Discrimination in Employment)

(cf. 4117.4 - Dismissal4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files)
(cf. 4119.1/4219.4319.1 - Civil and Legal Rights)
(cf. 4119.11/4219.11/4319.11 - Sexual Harassment)

Suspension/Dismissal Procedures

The Superintendent shall notify the Board whenever he/she believes that there is cause to suspend
or dismiss an employee pursuant to Education Code 44932 or 44933.



When the Board finds that there is cause to suspend or dismiss an employee pursuant to Education
Code 44932 or 44933, it may formulate a written statement of charges specifying instances of
behavior and the acts or omissions constituting the charge, the statutes and rules that the employee
is alleged to have violated when applicable, and the facts relevant to each charge. The Board shall
also review any duly signed and verified written statement of charges filed by any other person.
(Education Code 44934, 44934.1)

Based on the written statement of charges, the Board may, upon majority vote, give notice to the
employee of its intention to suspend or dismiss him/her at the expiration of 30 days from the date
the notice is served. (Education Code 44934, 44934.1)

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)

Prior to serving a suspension or dismissal notice that includes a charge of unsatisfactory
performance, the district shall give the employee written notice of the unsatisfactory performance
that specifies the nature of the unsatisfactory performance with such specific instances of behavior
and with such particularity as to furnish the employee an opportunity to correct his/her faults and
overcome the grounds for any unsatisfactory performance charges and, if applicable, that includes
the evaluation made pursuant to Education Code 44660-44665.  The written notice of the
unsatisfactory performance shall be provided at least 90 days prior to the filing of the suspension
or dismissal notice or prior to the last one-fourth of the school days in the year.  (Education Code
44938)

(cf. 4115 - Evaluation/Supervision)

Prior to serving a suspension or dismissal notice that includes a charge of unprofessional conduct,
the district shall give the employee written notice that describes the nature of the unprofessional
conduct with such specific instances of behavior and with such particularity
as to furnish the employee an opportunity to correct his/her faults and overcome the grounds for
any unprofessional conduct charges and, if applicable, that includes the evaluation made pursuant
to Education Code 44660-44665. The written notice of the unprofessional conduct shall be
provided at least 45 days prior to the filing of the suspension or dismissal notice.  (Education Code
44938)

Except for notices that only include charges of unsatisfactory performance, the written suspension
or dismissal notice may be served at any time of year. Such notice shall be served upon the
employee personally if given outside of the instructional year or, if given during the instructional
year, may be served personally or by registered mail to the employee's last known address. Notices
with a charge of unsatisfactory performance shall be given only during the instructional year of
the school site where the employee is physically employed, and may be served personally or by
registered mail to the employee's last known address.  (Education Code 44936)

If an employee has been served notice and demands a hearing pursuant to Government Code 11505
and 11506, the Board shall either rescind its action or schedule a hearing on the matter. (Education
Code 44941, 44941.1, 44943, 44944)



Pending suspension or dismissal proceedings for an employee who is charged with egregious
misconduct, immoral conduct, conviction of a felony or of any crime involving moral turpitude,
incompetency due to mental disability, or willful refusal to perform regular assignments without
reasonable cause as prescribed by district rules and regulations, the Board may, if it deems it
necessary, immediately suspend the employee from his/her duties. If the employee files a motion
with the Office of Administrative Hearings for immediate reversal of the suspension based on a
cause other than egregious misconduct, the Board may file a written response before or at the time
of the hearing.  (Education Code 44939, 44939.1, 44940)

When a suspension or dismissal hearing is to be conducted by a Commission on Professional
Competence, the Board shall, no later than 45 days before the date set for the hearing, select one
person with a currently valid credential to serve on the Commission. The appointee shall not be an
employee of the district and shall have at least three years' experience within the past 10 years at
the same grade span or assignment as the employee, as defined in Education Code 44944.
(Education Code 44944)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
44008  Effect of termination of probation
44009 Conviction of specified crimes
44010 Sex offense -; definitions

44011 Controlled substance offense -; definitions
44242.5  Reports and review of alleged misconduct
44425  Conviction of a sex or narcotic offense
44660-44665 Evaluation and assessment of performance of certificated employees
44830.1 Criminal record summary certificated employees
44932 Grounds for44929.21  Notice of reelection decision; districts with 250 ADA or more

44929.23  Reelection and dismissal of permanent employeeprobationary employees; districts with ADA
less than 250

44933 Other grounds for44930-44988  Resignations, dismissal

44938 Unprofessional conduct or unsatisfactory performance; notice of charges
44940 Sex offenses and narcotic offenses; compulsory, and leave of absence

44940.5 Compulsory leave of absence; procedures; extension; compensation; bond or security;
reports
44942 Suspension or transfer of certificated employee on grounds of mental illness
44944 Conduct of hearing
44948.3 Dismissal of employees on probation

45055 Drawing of warrants for teachers
48907  Exercise of free speech, expression
48950  Speech and other communication
51530 Advocacy or teaching of communism
GOVERNMENT CODE
1028  Advocacy of communism
3543.2 Scope of representation
11505-11506  Hearing
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
11054 Schedule I; substances included
11055 Schedule II, substances included



HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE (continued)
11056 Schedule III, substances included
11357-11361 Marijuana
11363 Peyote
11364 Opium
11370.1 Possession of controlled substances with a firearm
PENAL CODE
187  Murder
291  School employees arrest for sex offense
667.5 Prior prison terms, enhancement of prison terms
1192.7 Plea bargaining limitation
11165.2-11165.6  Child abuse or neglect; definitions
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
80303 Reports of change in employment status
80304  Notice of sexual misconduct
COURT DECISIONS
Vergara v. California (Los Angeles Super.Ct.) BC484642
Crowl v. Commission on Professional Competence, (1990) 225 Cal. App. 3d 334 (275
Morrison v. State Board of Education (1969) 1 Cal.Rptr. 86)3d 214

Management Resources:
COMMISSION ON TEACHER CREDENTIALING PUBLICATIONS
California's Laws and Rules Pertaining to the Discipline of Professional Certificated Personnel, 2007
WEB SITES
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org
Commission on Teacher Credentialing: http://www.ctc.ca.gov

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Policy
adopted: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised:   March 10, 2015 Loyalton, California

http://www.csba.org
http://www.ctc.ca.gov


1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation
Students AR 5125

STUDENT RECORDS

Definitions

Student means any individual who is or has been in attendance at the district and regarding whom the
district maintains student records.  (34 CFR 99.3)

Attendance includes, but is not limited to, attendance in person or by paper correspondence,
videoconference, satellite, Internet, or other electronic information and telecommunication technologies
for students who are not physically present in the classroom, and the period during which a person is
working under a work-study program.  (34 CFR 99.3)

Student records are any items of information (in handwriting, print, tape, film, computer, or other
medium) gathered within or outside the district that are directly related to an identifiable student and
maintained by the district, required to be maintained by an employee in the performance of his/her duties,
or maintained by a party acting for the district. Any information maintained for the purpose of second-
party review is considered a student record. Student records include the student's health record.
(Education Code 49061, 49062; 5 CCR 430; 34 CFR 99.3)

Student records do not include: (Education Code 49061, 49062; 5 CCR 430; 34 CFR 99.3)

1. Directory information

(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information)

2. Informal notes compiled by a school officer or employee which remain in the sole possession of
the maker, are used only as a personal memory aid, and are not accessible or revealed to any
other person except a substitute employee

3. Records of the law enforcement unit of the district, subject to the provisions of 34 CFR 99.8

(cf. 3515 - Campus Security)
(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)

4. Records created or received by the district after an individual is no longer a student in attendance
and that are not directly related to the individual's attendance as a student

5. Grades on peer-graded papers before they are collected and recorded by a teacher

Mandatory permanent student records are those records which are maintained in perpetuity and which
schools have been directed to compile by state law, regulation, or administrative directive.  (5 CCR 430)



2

Mandatory interim student records are those records which the schools are directed to compile and
maintain for stipulatedspecified periods of time and are then destroyed in accordance with state law,
regulation, or administrative directive.  (5 CCR 430)

Permitted student records are those records having clear importance only to the current educational
process of the student. (5 CCR 430)

Disclosure means to permit access to, or the release, transfer, or other communication of, personally
identifiable information contained in student records to any party, except the party that provided or
created the record, by any means including oral, written, or electronic.  (34 CFR 99.3)

Access means a personal inspection and review of a record or an accurate copy of a record, or receipt of
an accurate copy of a record or an oral description or communication of a record, and a request to release
a copy of any record.  (Education Code 49061)

Personally identifiable information includes, but is not limited to:  (34 CFR 99.3)

1. The student's name

2. The name of the student's parent/guardian or other family members

3. The address of the student or student's family

4. A personal identifier, such as the student's social security number, student number, or biometric
record (e.g., fingerprints, retina and iris patterns, voiceprints, DNA sequence, facial
characteristics, and handwriting)

5. Other indirect identifiers, such as the student's date of birth, place of birth, and mother's maiden
name

6. Other information that, alone or in combination, is linked or linkable to a specific student that
would allow a reasonable person in the school community, who does not
have personal knowledge of the relevant circumstances, to identify the student with reasonable
certainty

7. Information requested by a person who the district reasonably believes knows the identity of the
student to whom the student record relates

Adult student is a person who is or was enrolled in school and who is at least 18 years of age.  (5 CCR
430)

Parent/guardian means a natural parent, an adopted parent, legal guardian, surrogate parent, or foster
parent.  (Education Code 49061, 56050, 56055)

Legitimate educational interest is an interest held by any school official, employee, contractor, or
consultant whose duties, responsibilities, or contractual obligations to the district, whether routine or as
a result of special circumstances, require him/her to have access to student records.



3

School officials and employees are officials or employees whose duties and responsibilities to the district,
whether routine or as a result of special circumstances, require that they have access to student records.

Contractor or consultant is anyone with a formal written agreement or contract with the district
regarding the provision of services or functions outsourced to him/her by the district.  Contractor or
consultant shall not include a volunteer or other party.  (Education Code 49076)

Legitimate educational interest is an interest held by any school official, employee, contractor, or
consultant whose duties, responsibilities, or contractual obligations to the district, whether routine or as
a result of special circumstances, require him/her to have access to student records.

Custodian of records is the employee responsible for the security of student records maintained by the
district and for devising procedures for assuring that access to such records is limited to authorized
persons.  (5 CCR 433)

County placing agency means the county social service department or county probation department.
(Education Code 49061)

Persons Granted Absolute Access

The following persons shall haveIn accordance with law, absolute access to any and all student records
in accordance with law:shall be granted to:

1. Parents/guardians of students younger than age 18 years, including the parent who is not the
student's custodial parent  (Education Code 49069; Family Code 3025)

2. An adult student age 18 years or older, or a student under the age of 18 years who attends a
postsecondary institution, in which case the student alone shall exercise rights related to his/her
student records and grant consent for the release of records  (34 CFR 99.3, 99.5)

3. Parents/guardians of an adult student with disabilities who is age 18 years or older and has been
declared incompetent under state law  (Education Code 56041.5)

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)

In addition, theAccess for Limited Purpose/Legitimate Educational Interest

The following persons or agencies shall have access to those particular records that are relevant to their
legitimate educational interest or other legally authorized purpose:

1. Parents/guardians of a student age 18 or older who is a dependent child as defined under 26 USC
152  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

2. Students who are age 16 or older or who have completed the 10th grade  (Education Code 49076;
34 CFR 99.31)

3. School officials and employees, consistent with the definition provided in the section
"Definitions" above  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)



4

4. Members of a school attendance review board (SARB) who are authorized representatives of the
district and any volunteer aide age 18 or older who has been investigated, selected, and trained
by the SARB to provide follow-up services to a referred student  (Education Code 49076)

(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)

5. Officials and employees of other public schools, school systems, or postsecondary institutions
where the student intends or is directed to enroll, including local, county,
or state correctional facilities where educational programs leading to high school graduation are
provided, or where the student is already enrolled, as long as the disclosure is for purposes related
to the student's enrollment or transfer  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

Unless the annual parent/guardian notification issued pursuant to Education Code 48980 includes
a statement that the district may disclose students' personally identifiable information to officials
of another school, school system, or postsecondary institution where the student seeks or intends
to enroll, the Superintendent or designee shall, when such a disclosure is made, make a reasonable
attempt to notify the parent/guardian or adult student at his/her last known address, provide a
copy of the record that is disclosed, and give the parent/guardian or adult student an opportunity
for a hearing to challenge the record.  (34 CFR 99.34)

6. The Student Aid Commission, for the purpose of providing the grade point average (GPA) of all
district students in grade 12 to the Cal Grant postsecondary financial aid program, except when
students opt out or are permitted by the rules of the Student Aid Commission to provide test
scores in lieu of the GPA  (Education Code 69432.9)

No later than October 15 each year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify each student in
grade 12, and his/her parents/guardians if the student is under age 18 years, that the student's
GPA will be forwarded to the Student Aid Commission unless he/she opts out within a period of
time specified in the notice, which shall not be less than 30 days.  (Education Code 69432.9)

Students' social security numbers shall not be included in the submitted information unless the
Student Aid Commission deems it necessary to complete the financial aid application and the
Superintendent or designee obtains permission from the student's parent/guardian, or from the
adult student, to submit the social security number.  (Education Code 69432.9)

7. Federal, state, and local officials, as needed for an audit, evaluation, or compliance activity
related to a state or federally funded education program and in accordance with a written
agreement developed pursuant to 34 CFR 99.35  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.3, 99.31,
99.35)

8. Any county placing agency acting as an authorized representative of a state or local educational
agency which is required to audit or evaluate a state or federally supported education program
pursuant to item #7 above  (Education Code 49076)

89. Any person, agency, or organization authorized in compliance with a court order or lawfully
issued subpoena  (Education Code 49077; 5 CCR 435; 34 CFR 99.31)



5

Unless otherwise instructed by the court, the Superintendent or designee shall, prior to disclosing
a record pursuant to a court order or subpoena, give the parent/guardian or adult student at least
three days' notice of the name of the requesting agency and the specific record requested, if
lawfully possible within the requirements of the judicial order.  (Education Code 49077; 5 CCR
435; 34 CFR 99.31)

910. Any district attorney who is participating in or conducting a truancy mediation program or
participating in the presentation of evidence in a truancy petition (Education Code 49076)

1011. A district attorney's office for consideration against a parent/guardian for failure to comply with
compulsory education laws  (Education Code 49076)

1112. Any probation officer, district attorney, or counsel of record for a minor student for the purposes
of conducting a criminal investigation or an investigation in regards to declaring the minor
student a ward of the court or involving a violation of a condition of probation, subject to
evidentiary rules specified in Welfare and Institutions Code 701  (Education Code 49076)

When disclosing records for these purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain written
certification from the recipient of the records that the information will not be disclosed to another
party without prior written consent of the student's parent/guardian or the holder of the student's
educational rights, unless specifically authorized by state or federal law.  (Education Code 49076)

13. Any judge or probation officer for the purpose of conducting a truancy mediation program for a
student or for the purpose of presenting evidence in a truancy petition pursuant to Welfare and
Institutions Code 681  (Education Code 49076)

In such cases, the judge or probation officer shall certify in writing to the Superintendent or
designee that the information will be used only for truancy purposes.  Upon releasing student
information to a judge or probation officer, the Superintendent or designee shall inform, or
provide written notification to, the student's parent/guardian within 24 hours.  (Education Code
49076)

1314. Any foster family agency with jurisdiction over currently enrolled or former students for
purposes of accessing those students' records of grades and transcripts and any individualized
education program developed and maintained by the district (Education Code 49069.3)

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

15. A student age 14 years or older who is both a homeless student and an unaccompanied minor as
defined in 42 USC 11434a (Education Code 49076)

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)

16. An individual who completes items 1-4 of the caregiver's authorization affidavit pursuant to
Family Code 6552 and signs the affidavit for the purpose of enrolling a minor in school
(Education Code 49076)

17. A caseworker or other representative of a state or local child welfare agency or tribal organization
that has legal responsibility for the care and protection of a student, provided that the information



6

is directly related to providing assistance to address the student's educational needs  (Education
Code 49076; 20 USC 1232(g))

18. Appropriate law enforcement authorities, in circumstances where Education Code 48902 requires
that the district provide special education and disciplinary records of a student with disabilities
who is suspended or expelled for committing an act violating Penal Code 245  (Education Code
48902, 49076)

When disclosing such records, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain written certification
by the recipient of the records as described in item #1112 above. (Education Code 49076)

19. Designated peace officers or law enforcement agencies in cases where the district is authorized
by law to assist law enforcement in investigations of suspected criminal conduct or kidnapping
and a written parental consent, lawfully issued subpoena, or court order is submitted to the
district, or information is provided to it indicating that an emergency exists in which the student's
information is necessary to protect the health or safety of the student or other individuals
(Education Code 49076.5; 34 CFR 99.1-99.67)

In such cases, the Superintendent or designee shall provide information about the identity and
location of the student as it relates to the transfer of that student's records to another public school
district or California private school. (Education Code 49076.5)

When disclosing records for the above purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain the
necessary documentation to verify that the person, agency, or organization is a person, agency, or
organization that is permitted to receive such records.

Any person, agency, or organization granted access is prohibited from releasing information to another
person, agency, or organization without written permission from the parent/guardian or adult student
unless specifically allowed by state law or the federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act.
(Education Code 49076)

In addition, the parent/guardian or adult student may provide written consent for access to be granted to
persons, agencies, or organizations not afforded access rights by law. The written consent shall specify
the records to be released and the party or parties to whom they may be released. (Education Code
49075)

Only a parent/guardian having legal custody of the student may consent to the release of records to
others. Either parent/guardian may grant consent if both parents/guardians notify the district, in writing,
that such an agreement has been made.  (Education Code 49061)

(cf. 5021 - Noncustodial Parents)

Discretionary Access

At his/her discretion, the Superintendent or designee may release information from a student's records
to the following:

1. Appropriate persons, including parents/guardians of a student, in an emergency if the health and
safety of the student or other persons are at stake  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31, 99.32,
99.36)



7

When releasing information to any such appropriate person, the Superintendent or designee shall
record information about the threat to the health or safety of the student
or any other person that formed the basis for the disclosure and the person(s) to whom the
disclosure was made.  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.32)

Unless it would further endanger the health or safety of the student or other persons, the
Superintendent or designee shall inform the parent/guardian or adult student within one week of
the disclosure that the disclosure was made, of the articulable and significant threat to the health
or safety of the student or other individuals that formed the basis for the disclosure, and of the
parties to whom the disclosure was made.

2. Accrediting associations  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

3. Under the conditions specified in Education Code 49076 and 34 CFR 99.31, organizations
conducting studies on behalf of educational institutions or agencies for the purpose of developing,
validating, or administering predictive tests, administering student aid programs, or improving
instruction, provided that:  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

a. The study is conducted in a manner that does not permit personal identification of
parents/guardians and students by individuals other than representatives of the
organization who have legitimate interests in the information.

b. The information is destroyed when no longer needed for the purposes for which the study
is conducted.

c. The district enters into a written agreement with the organization that complies with 34
CFR 99.31.

4. Officials and employees of private schools or school systems where the student is enrolled or
intends to enroll, subject to the rights of parents/guardians as provided in Education Code 49068
and in compliance with 34 CFR 99.34  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31, 99.34)

5. Local health departments operating countywide or regional immunization information and
reminder systems and the California Department of Public Health, in which caseunless the
Superintendent or designee shall notify the student's parent/guardian has requested that no
disclosures of his/her rights in accordance with law prior to releasing the information this type
be made (Health and Safety Code 120440)

6. Contractors and consultants having a legitimate educational interest based on services or
functions which have been outsourced to them through a formal written agreement or contract
by the district, excluding volunteers or other parties  (Education Code 49076)

(cf. 3600 - Consultants)

7. Agencies or organizations in connection with the student's application for or receipt of financial
aid, provided that information permitting the personal identification of a student or his/her
parents/guardians for these purposes is disclosed only as may be necessary to determine the
eligibility of the student for financial aid, determine the amount of financial aid, determine the



8

conditions which will be imposed regarding the financial aid, or enforce the terms or conditions
of the financial aid  (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31, 99.36)

8. County elections officials for the purpose of identifying students eligible to register to vote or
offering such students an opportunity to register, subject to the provisions of 34 CFR 99.37 and
under the condition that any information provided on this basis shall not be used for any other
purpose or transferred to any other person or agency (Education Code 49076; 34 CFR 99.31,
99.37)

(cf. 1400 - Relations Between Other Governmental Agencies and the Schools)

Persons, agencies, or organizations not afforded access rights by law may be granted access only through
written consent of the parent/guardian or adult student, or by judicial order. (Education Code 49075)

Only a parent/guardian having legal custody of the student may consent to the release of records to
others. Either parent may grant consent if both parents notify the district, in writing, that such an
agreement has been made.  (Education Code 49061)

(cf. 5021 - Noncustodial Parents)

Any person, agency, or organization granted access is prohibited from releasing information to another
person, agency, or organization without written permission from the parent/guardian or adult student
unless specifically allowed by state law or the federal Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act.
(Education Code 49076)

When disclosing records for the above purposes, the Superintendent or designee shall obtain the
necessary documentation to verify that the person, agency, or organization is a person, agency, or
organization that is permitted to receive such records.

De-identification of Records

When authorized by law for any program audit, educational research, or other purposes, the
Superintendent or designee may release information from a student record without prior consent of the
parent/guardian or adult student after the removal of all personally identifiable information.  Prior to
releasing such information, the Superintendent or designee shall make a reasonable determination that
the student's identity is not personally identifiable, whether through single or multiple releases and taking
into account other reasonably available information.  (Education Code 49074, 49076; 34 CFR 99.31)

Process for Providing Access to Records

Student records shall be maintained in a central file at the school attended by the student or, when records
are maintained in different locations, a notation shall be placed in the central file indicating where other
records may be found.  Parents/guardians shall be notified of the location of student records if not
centrally located. (Education Code 49069; 5 CCR 433)

The custodian of records shall be responsible for the security of student records and shall ensure that
access is limited to authorized persons.  (5 CCR 433)



9

The custodian of records shall develop reasonable methods, including physical, technological, and
administrative controls, to ensure that school officials and employees obtain access to only those student
records in which they have legitimate educational interests.  (34 CFR 99.31)

To inspect, review, or obtain copies of student records, authorized persons shall submit a request to the
custodian of records.  Prior to granting the request, the custodian of records shall authenticate the
individual's identity.  For any individual granted access based on a legitimate educational interest, the
request shall specify the interest involved.

When prior written consent from a parent/guardian is required by law, the parent/guardian shall provide
a written, signed, and dated consent before the district discloses the student record.  Such consent may
be given through electronic means in those cases where it can be authenticated.  The district's consent
form shall specify the records that may be disclosed, state the purpose of the disclosure, and identify the
party or class of parties to whom the disclosure may be made.  Upon request by the parent/guardian, the
district shall provide him/her a copy of the records disclosed.  (34 CFR 99.30)

Within five business days following the date of request, a parent/guardian or other authorized person
shall be granted access to inspect, review, and obtain copies of student records during regular school
hours. (Education Code 49069)

Qualified certificated personnel shall be available to interpret records when requested.  (Education Code
49069)

The custodian of records or the Superintendent or designee shall prevent the alteration, damage, or loss
of records during inspection.  (5 CCR 435)

Access Log

A log shall be maintained for each student's record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations
requesting or receiving information from the records and the legitimate educational interest of the
requester.  (Education Code 49064)

In every instance of inspection by persons who do not have assigned educational responsibility, the
custodian of records shall make an entry in the log indicating the record inspected, the name of the person
granted access, the reason access was granted, and the time and circumstances of inspection.  (5 CCR
435)

The log may include record of access by:  (Education Code 49064)

1. Parents/guardians or adult students

2. Students who are 16 years of age or older or who have completed the 10th grade

3. Parties obtaining district-approved directory information

4. Parties who provide written parental consent, in which case the consent notice shall be filed with
the record pursuant to Education Code 49075



10

5. School officials and employees who have a legitimate educational interest

The log shall be accessible only to the parent/guardian, adult student, dependent adult student, student
who is age 16 years or older or who has completed the 10th grade, custodian of records, and certain state
or federal officials. (Education Code 49064; 5 CCR 432)

Duplication of Student Records

To provide copies of any student record, the district shall charge a reasonable fee not to exceed the actual
cost of providing the copies.  No charge shall be made for providing up to two transcripts or up to two
verifications of various records for any former student.  No charge shall be made to locate or retrieve
any student record.  (Education Code 49065)

(cf. 3260 - Fees and Charges)

Changes to Student Records

Only or a parent/guardian having legal custody of a student or an adult student may challenge the content
of a record or offer a written response to a record.  (Education Code 49061)

(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records)

No additions except routine updating shall be made to a student's record after high school graduation or
permanent departure without prior consent of the parent/guardian or adult student. (5 CCR 437)

A student's legal name or gender as entered on the mandatory student record required pursuant to 5 CCR
432 shall only be changed pursuant to a court order. However, at the written request of a student or, if
appropriate, his/her parents/guardians, the district shall use the student's preferred name and pronouns
consistent with his/her gender identity on all other district-related documents.

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

Retention and Destruction of Student Records

All anecdotal information and assessment reports maintained as student records shall be dated and signed
by the individual who originated the data.  (5 CCR 431)

The following mandatory permanent student records shall be kept indefinitely:  (5 CCR 432, 437)

1. Legal name of student

2. Date and place of birth and method of verifying birth date

(cf. 5111 - Admission)

3. Sex of student

4. Name and address of parent/guardian of minor student



11

a. Address of minor student if different from the above

b. Annual verification of parent/guardian's name and address and student's residence

(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency)
(cf. 5111.12 - Residency Based on Parent/Guardian Employment)

5. Entrance and departure dates of each school year and for any summer session or other extra
session

6. Subjects taken during each year, half-year, summer session, or quarter, and marks or credits given

(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement)

7. Verification of or exemption from required immunizations

(cf. 5141.31 - Immunizations)

8. Date of high school graduation or equivalent

Mandatory interim student records, unless forwarded to another district, shall be maintained subject to
destruction during the third school year after the school year in which they originated, following a
determination that their usefulness has ceased or the student has left the district.  These records include:
(Education Code 48918, 51747; 5 CCR 432, 437, 16027)

1. Expulsion orders and the causes therefor

(cf. 5144.1 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

2. A log identifying persons or agencies who request or receive information from the student record

3. Health information, including verification or waiver of the health screening for school entry

(cf. 5141.32 - Health Screening for School Entry)

4. Information on participation in special education programs, including required tests, case studies,
authorizations, and evidence of eligibility for admission or discharge

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)

5. Language training records

(cf. 6174 - Education for English Language Learners)

6. Progress slips/notices required by Education Code 49066 and 49067

7. Parental restrictions/stipulations regarding access to directory information



12

8. Parent/guardian or adult student rejoinders to challenged records and to disciplinary action

9. Parent/guardian authorization or denial of student participation in specific programs

10. Results of standardized tests administered within the past three years

(cf. 6162.51 - Standardized Testing and Reporting ProgramState Academic Achievement Tests)
(cf. 6162.52 - High School Exit Examination)

11. Written findings resulting from an evaluation conducted after a specified number of missed
assignments to determine whether it is in a student's best interest to remain in independent study

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study)

Permitted student records may be destroyed six months after the student completes or withdraws from
the educational program, including:  (5 CCR 432, 437)

1. Objective counselor and/or teacher ratings

2. Standardized test results older than three years

3. Routine disciplinary data

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)

4. Verified reports of relevant behavioral patterns

5. All disciplinary notices

6. Supplementary attendance records

Records shall be destroyed in a way that assures they will not be available to possible public inspection
in the process of destruction.  (5 CCR 437)

Transfer of Student Records

When a student transfers into this district from any other school district or a private school, the
Superintendent or designee shall inform the student's parent/guardian of his/her rights regarding student
records, including the right to review, challenge, and receive a copy of student records. (Education Code
49068; 5 CCR 438)

When a student transfers into this district from another district, the Superintendent or designee shall
request that the student's previous district provide any records, either maintained by that district in the
ordinary course of business or received from a law enforcement agency, regarding acts committed by
the transferring student that resulted in his/her suspension or expulsion.  (Education Code 48201)

(cf. 4158/4258/4358 - Employee Security)
(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled From Other Districts)



13

When a student transfers from this district to another school district or to a private school, the
Superintendent or designee shall forward a copy of the student's mandatory permanent record within 10
school days of the district's receipt of the request for the student's records.  The original record or a copy
shall be retained permanently by this district.  If the transfer is to another California public school, the
student's entire mandatory interim record shall also be forwarded.  If the transfer is out of state or to a
private school, the mandatory interim record may be forwarded. Permitted student records may be
forwarded to any other district or private school.  (Education Code 48918, 49068; 5 CCR 438)

Upon receiving a request from a county placing agency to transfer a student in foster care out of a district
school, the Superintendent or designee shall transfer the student's records to the next educational
placement within two business days.  (Education Code 49069.5)

All student records shall be updated before they are transferred.  (5 CCR 438)

Student records shall not be withheld from the requesting district because of any charges or fees owed
by the student or parent/guardian.  (5 CCR 438)

If the district is withholding grades, diploma, or transcripts from the student because of his/her damage
or loss of school property, this information shall be sent to the requesting district along with the student's
records.

(cf. 5125.2 - Withholding Grades, Diploma or Transcripts)

Notification of Parents/Guardians

Upon any student's initial enrollment, and at the beginning of each school year thereafter, the
Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians and eligible students, in writing, of their rights
related to student records. Insofar as practicableIf 15 percent or more of the students enrolled in the
district speak a single primary language other than English, then the district shall provide these notices
to that language. Otherwise, the district shall provide these notices in the student's home language
andinsofar as practicable. The district shall effectively notify parents/guardians or eligible students with
disabilities. (Education Code 49063, 48985; 34 CFR 99.7)

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

The notice shall include:  (Education Code 49063; 34 CFR 99.7, 99.34)

1. The types of student records kept by the district and the information contained therein

2. The title(s) of the official(s) responsible for maintaining each type of record

3. The location of the log identifying those who request information from the records

4. District criteria for defining school officials and employees and for determining legitimate
educational interest

5. District policies for reviewing and expunging student records



14

6. The right to inspect and review student records and the procedures for doing so

7. The right to challenge and the procedures for challenging the content of a student record that the
parent/guardian or student believes to be inaccurate, misleading, or otherwise in violation of the
student's privacy rights

8. The cost, if any, charged for duplicating copies of records

9. The categories of information defined as directory information pursuant to Education Code
49073

10. The right to consent to disclosures of personally identifiable information contained in the
student's records except when disclosure without consent is authorized by law

11. Availability of the curriculum prospectus developed pursuant to Education Code 49091.14
containing the titles, descriptions, and instructional aims of every course offered by the school

(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities)

12. Any other rights and requirements set forth in Education Code 49060-49078, and the right of
parents/guardians to file a complaint with the U.S. Department of Education concerning an
alleged failure by the district to comply with 20 USC 1232g

13. A statement that the district forwards education records to other agencies or institutions that
request the records and in which the student seeks or intends to enroll or is already enrolled as
long as the disclosure is for purposes related to the student's enrollment

Student Records from Social Media

If a program has been initiated for the purpose of gathering and maintaining records of students' social
media activity, the Superintendent or designee shall:  (Education Code 49073.6)

1. Gather or maintain only information that pertains directly to school safety or student safety

2. Provide a student with access to any information that the district obtained from his/her social
media activity and an opportunity to correct or delete such information

3. Destroy information gathered from social media and maintained in student records within one
year after a student turns 18 years of age or within one year after the student is no longer enrolled
in the district, whichever occurs first

4. Notify each parent/guardian that the student's information is being gathered from social media
and that any information maintained in the student's records shall be destroyed as provided in
item #3 above. The notification shall also include, but is not limited to, an explanation of the
process by which a student or his/her parent/guardian may access the student's records for
examination of the information gathered or maintained and the process by which removal of the
information may be requested or corrections to the information may be made. The notification
may be provided as part of the annual parental notification required pursuant to Education Code
48980.



15

5. If the district contracts with a third party to gather information on a student from social media,
ensure that the contract:

a. Prohibits the third party from using the information for purposes other than those
specified in the contract or from selling or sharing the information with any person or
entity other than the district, the student, or his/her parent/guardian

b. Requires the third party to destroy the information immediately upon satisfying the terms
of the contract, or when the district notifies the third party that the student has turned 18
years of age or is no longer enrolled in the district, whichever occurs first

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Regulation April 10, 2007
approved: Sierraville, California
revised:     May 8, 2012
revised:     February 12, 2013
revised:     March 10, 2015 Loyalton, California



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy

Students BP 5125(a)

STUDENT RECORDS

The Governing Board recognizes the importance of keeping accurate, comprehensive student
records as required by law. ProceduresThe Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the
district's administrative regulation and school site procedures for maintaining the confidentiality
of student records shall beare consistent with state and federal law.

The Superintendent or designee shall establish administrative regulations governing the
identification, description retention, and security of student records, as well as timely access for
authorized persons. . These regulations shall ensure parentalthe rights of authorized persons to
review, inspect and copyhave timely access to student records and shall protect the students and
the student's family their families from invasion of privacy.

(cf. 3580 - District Records)
(cf. 4040 - Employee Use of Technology)
(cf. 5125.1 - Release of Directory Information)
(cf. 5125.3 - Challenging Student Records)

The Superintendent or designee shall designate an employee to serve as custodian of records, with
responsibility for student records at the district level. At each school, the principal or site secretary
shall act be designated as custodian of records for students enrolled at that school. The custodian
of records shall be responsible for implementing Board policy and administrative regulation
regarding student records.  (5 CCR 431)

Student Records from Social Media

The Superintendent or designee may gather and maintain information from the social media of any
district student, provided that the district first notifies students and parents/guardians about the
proposed program, offers an opportunity for public comment at a regularly scheduled Board
meeting, and gathers only information that directly pertains to school safety or student safety.
(Education Code 49073.6)

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials)
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct)



2

Contract for Digital Storage, Management, and Retrieval of Student Records

The Superintendent or designee may enter into a contract with a third party for the digital storage,
management, and retrieval of student records and/or to authorize a third party provider of digital
software to access, store, and use student records, provided that the contract meets the requirements
of Education Code 49073.1 and other applicable state and federal laws.

(cf. 3312 - Contracts)

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
17604  Contracts
48201  Student records for transfer students who have been suspended/expelled
48853.5  Foster youth; placement, immunizations
48902  Notification of law enforcement of specified violations
48904-48904.3 Withholding grades, diplomas, or transcripts of pupils causing property damage or
injury; transfer of pupils to new school districts; notice to rescind decision to withhold
48918 Rules governing expulsion procedures
48980 Parental notifications
48985  Notices in parent/guardian's primary language
49060-49079 PupilStudent records
49091.14  Parental review of curriculum
51747  Independent study programs
56041.5  Rights of students with disabilities
56050  Surrogate parents
56055  Foster parents
69432.9  Cal Grant program; notification of grade point average
BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE
22580-22582  Digital privacy
22584-22585 Student Online Personal Information Protection Act
CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE
1985.3 Subpoena duces tecum
FAMILY CODE
3025  Access to records by noncustodial parents
6552  Caregiver's authorization affidavit
GOVERNMENT CODE
6252-6260  Inspection of public records
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
120440  Immunizations; disclosure of information
PENAL CODE
245  Assault with deadly weapon
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE
681 Truancy petitions
701  Juvenile court law
16010 Health and education records of a minor
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
430-438  Individual pupilstudent records
16020-16027  Destruction of records of school districts
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
1232g Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
1232h  Protection of Pupil Rights Amendment
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 26



3

152  Definition of dependent child
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
11434a  McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act; definitions
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 16
Part 312 Children's Online Privacy Protection Rule
CODE OF FEDERAL REGULATIONS, TITLE 34
99.1-99.67 Family Educational Rights and Privacy

300.500  Definition of "personally identifiable"
300.501  Opportunity to examine records for parents of student with disability

300.573  Destruction of information
COURT DECISIONS
Falvo v. Owasso Independent School District, 220 F.3d. 1200 (10th Cir. 2000)

Management Resources:
FEDERAL REGISTER
Final Rule and Analysis of Comments and Changes, Family Educational Rights and Privacy, December 9,
2008, Vol. 73, No. 237, pages 74806-74855
NATIONAL SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS
Data in the Cloud: A Legal and Policy Guide for School Boards on Student Data Privacy in the Cloud
Computing Era, April 2014
U.S.  DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Joint Guidance on the Application of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) and the
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) to Student Health Records, 2008
Balancing Student Privacy and School Safety: A Guide to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act
for Elementary and Secondary Schools, October 2007
WEB SITES
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov
National School Boards Association: http://www.nsba.org
U.S. Department of Education, Family Policy Compliance Office:,
http://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/index.html

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
Policy SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
adopted: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
Revised:  March 10, 2015 Loyalton, California

http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.nsba.org
http://www.ed.gov/policy/gen/guid/fpco/index.html


1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation
Health Care And Emergencies

Students AR 5141(a)

HEALTH CARE AND EMERGENCIES

Emergency Contact Information

In order to facilitate contact in case of an emergency or accident, parents/guardians shall furnish
the principal or designee with shall annually request that parents/guardians provide the following
information specified below:

1. Home address and telephone number

2. Parent/guardian's business address and telephone number

3. Parent/guardian's cell phone number and e-mailemail address, if applicable

4. Name, address, and telephone number of a relative or friend an alternative contact person
to whom the student may be released and who is authorized by the parent/guardian to care
for the student in cases of emergency or when the parent/guardian cannot be reached

5. Local physician to call in case of emergency

(cf. 5021 - Noncustodial Parents)
(cf. 5141.21 - Administering Medication and Monitoring Health Conditions)
(cf. 5142 - Safety)

In addition, parents/guardians shall be encouraged to notify the school whenever their emergency
contact information changes.

Notification/Consent by Caregiverfor Medical Treatment

AnyWhenever a student requires emergency or urgent medical treatment while at school or a
school-sponsored activity, the principal or designee shall contact the parent/guardian or other
person identified on the emergency contact form in order to obtain consent for the medical
treatment.

Note:  Pursuant to Education Code 49407, the district may not be held liable for the reasonable treatment of a
student during regular school hours if the parent/guardian cannot be reached, unless the parent/guardian has
previously filed a written objection to any medical treatment other than first aid.

If the student's parent/guardian or other contact person cannot be reached to provide consent, the
principal may seek reasonable medical treatment for the student as needed, unless the



2

parent/guardian has previously filed with the district a written objection to any medical treatment
other than first aid.

Note:  Family Code 6550 provides authorization for a caregiver 18 years of age andor older who fileshas signed
a caregiver's affidavit to enroll a minor in school and consent to school-related medical care on behalf of the minor
when the minor is residing with the caregiver. A sample caregiver's affidavit can be found in Family Code 6552.
See also AR 5111.1 - District Residency.

Pursuant to Family Code 6550, any person who provides medical care in good-faith reliance on a caregiver's
affidavit is not subject to criminal or civil liability or professional disciplinary action for such reliance unless
he/she has actual knowledge of facts contrary to those stated on the affidavit.

A person who has filed with the district a completed caregiver's authorization affidavit for a minor
district student pursuant to Family Code 6550-6552 shall have the right to consent to or refuse
school-related medical care on behalf of the minor student. The caregiver's authorization shall be
invalid if the district receives notice from the caregiver that the minor student is no longer living
with the caregiver. (Family Code 6550)

(cf. 5111.1 - District Residency)

The caregiver's consent to medical care shall be superseded by any contravening decision of the
parent or other person having legal custody of the student, provided that this contravening decision
does not jeopardize the student's life, health, or safety.  (Family Code 6550)

Automated External Defibrillators

Note: The following optional section is for use by districts that choose to place automated external defibrillators
(AEDs) in school facilities.

Education Code 49417, as added by AB 2217 (Ch. 812, Statutes of 2014), and Health and Safety Code 1797.196
clarify that a district or district employee will not be liable for civil damages resulting from any act or omission in
the rendering of emergency care or treatment provided the employee complies with the requirements of Health
and Safety Code 1797.196 as specified below and does not act with gross negligence or willful or wanton
misconduct by using, attempting to use, or maliciously failing to use an AED to render emergency care or
treatment.

When an automated external defibrillator (AED) is placed in a district school, the Superintendent
or designee shall ensure that there is a written plan in place which describes the procedures to be
followed in the event of an emergency that may involve the use of an AED, including, but not
limited to, requirements for immediate notification of the 911 emergency telephone number and
trained office personnel at the start of the procedures.  (Health and Safety Code 1797.196)

Note: Health and Safety Code 1797.196 requires that the district provide school employees with an approved
brochure describing the proper use of an AED. Such a brochure is available on the web site of the American Heart
Association.

The Superintendent or designee shall annually provide school employees a brochure that describes
the proper use of an AED and is approved in content and style by the American Heart Association
or American Red Cross. Similar information shall be posted next to every AED. In addition, school



3

employees shall be notified annually of the location of all AED units on campus. (Health and
Safety Code 1797.196)

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)

The principal shall designate the trained employees who shall be available to respond to an
emergency that may involve the use of an AED during the hours of classroom instruction or when
a school-sponsored activity is occurring on school grounds.  (Health and Safety Code 1797.196)

The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all AEDs are maintained and regularly tested in
accordance with applicable laws and the operation and maintenance guidelines set forth by the
manufacturer, American Heart Association, and American Red Cross. (Health and Safety Code
1797.196)

Each AED shall be checked for readiness after each use and at least every 30 days if the AED has
not been used in the preceding 30 days.  The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of
these checks. (Health and Safety Code 1797.196)

(cf. 3580 - District Records)

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Regulation
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
Revised:    March 10, 2015



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation

Students AR 5141.4

CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION AND REPORTING

Definitions

Child abuse or neglect includes the following:  (Penal Code 11165.5, 11165.6)

1. A physical injury or death inflicted by other than accidental means on a child by another person

2. Sexual abuse of a child, including sexual assault or sexual exploitation, as defined in Penal Code
11165.1

3. Neglect of a child as defined in Penal Code 11165.2

4. Willful harming or injuring of a child or the endangering of the person or health of a child as
defined in Penal Code 11165.3

5. Unlawful corporal punishment or injury as defined in Penal Code 11165.4

(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

Child abuse or neglect does not include:

1. A mutual affray between minors (Penal Code 11165.6)

2. An injury caused by reasonable and necessary force used by a peace officer acting within the
course and scope of his/her employment  (Penal Code 11165.6)

(cf. 3515.3 - District Police/Security Department)

3. An injury resulting from the exercise by a teacher, vice principal, principal, or other certificated
employee of the same degree of physical control over a student that a
parent/guardian would be privileged to exercise, not exceeding the amount of physical control
reasonably necessary to maintain order, protect property, protect the health and safety of students,
or maintain proper and appropriate conditions conducive to learning (Education Code 44807)

4. An injury caused by a school employee's use of force that is reasonable and necessary to quell a
disturbance threatening physical injury to persons or damage to property, to protect
himself/herself, or to obtain weapons or other dangerous objects within the control of thea student
(Education Code 49001)

(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)



2

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 6159.4 - Behavioral Interventions for Special Education Students)

5. Physical pain or discomfort caused by athletic competition or other such recreational activity
voluntarily engaged in by thea student  (Education Code 49001)

(cf. 6142.7 - Physical Education and Activity)
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)

6. Homelessness or classification as an unaccompanied minor  (Penal Code 11165.15)

Mandated reporters include, but are not limited to, teachers; instructional aides; teacher's aides or
assistants; classified employees; certificated pupil personnel employees; administrative officers or
supervisors of child attendance; athletic coaches, administrators, and directors; administrators and
employees of a licensed child day care facility; Head Start teachers; district police or security officers;
licensed nurses or health care providers; and administrators, presenters, and counselors of a child abuse
prevention program.  (Penal Code 11165.7)

Reasonable suspicion means that it is objectively reasonable for a person to entertain a suspicion, based
upon facts that could cause a reasonable person in a like position, drawing when appropriate on his/her
training and experience, to suspect child abuse or neglect.  However, reasonable suspicion does not
require certainty that child abuse or neglect has occurred nor does it require a specific medical indication
of child abuse or neglect.  (Penal Code 11166)

Reportable Offenses

A mandated reporter shall make a report using the procedures provided below whenever, in his/her
professional capacity or within the scope of his/her employment, he/she has knowledge of or observes a
child whom the mandated reporter knows or reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse or
neglect.  (Penal Code 11166)

Any mandated reporter who has knowledge of or who reasonably suspects that a child is suffering serious
emotional damage or is at a substantial risk of suffering serious emotional damage, based on evidence
of severe anxiety, depression, withdrawal, or untoward aggressive behavior toward self or others, may
make a report to the appropriate agency.  (Penal Code 11166.05, 11167)

Any district employee who reasonably believes that he/she has observed the commission of a murder,
rape, or lewd or lascivious act by use of force, violence, duress, menace, or fear of immediate and
unlawful bodily injury against a victim who is a child under age 14 shall notify a peace officer.  (Penal
Code 152.3, 288)

Responsibility for Reporting

The reporting duties of mandated reporters are individual and cannot be delegated to another person.
(Penal Code 11166)

When two or more mandated reporters jointly have knowledge of a known or suspected instance of child
abuse or neglect, the report may be made by a member of the team selected by mutual agreement and a
single report may be made and signed by the selected member of the reporting team. Any member who



3

has knowledge that the member designated to report has failed to do so shall thereafter make the report.
(Penal Code 11166)

No supervisor or administrator shall impede or inhibit a mandated reporter from making a report.  (Penal
Code 11166)

Any person not identified as a mandated reporter who has knowledge of or observes a child whom he/she
knows or reasonably suspects has been a victim of child abuse or neglect may report the known or
suspected instance of child abuse or neglect to the appropriate agency.  (Penal Code 11166)

(cf. 1240 - Volunteer Assistance)

Reporting Procedures

1. Initial Telephone Report

Immediately or as soon as practicable after knowing or observing suspected child abuse or
neglect, a mandated reporter shall make an initial report by telephone to any police department
(excluding a school district police/security department), sheriff's department, county probation
department if designated by the county to receive such reports, or county welfare department.
(Penal Code 11165.9, 11166)

SIERRA COUNTY SHERIFF:

DOWNIEVILLE CHILD PROTECTIVE SERVICES
100 Courthouse Square 22 Maiden Lane, Downieville CA 95936
Downieville, CA 95936 530 289-3711
(530) 289-3700 202 Front Street, Loyalton CA 96118

530 993-6700

LOYALTON SHERIFF SUBSTATION
61050 State Route 49
Loyalton, CA 96118
(530) 993-4479

When the initial telephone report is made, the mandated reporter shall note the name of the
official contacted, the date and time contacted, and any instructions or advice received.

2. Written Report

Within 36 hours of knowing or observing the information concerning the incident, the mandated
reporter shall then prepare and either send, fax, or electronically submit to the appropriate agency
a written follow-up report, which includes a completed Department of Justice form (SS 8572).
(Penal Code 11166, 11168)

The Department of Justice form may be obtained from the district office or other appropriate
agencies, such as the county probation or welfare department or the police or sheriff's department.



4

Reports of suspected child abuse or neglect shall include, if known:  (Penal Code 11167)

a. The name, business address, and telephone number of the person making the report and
the capacity that makes the person a mandated reporter

b. The child's name and address, present location, and, where applicable, school, grade, and
class

c. The names, addresses, and telephone numbers of the child's parents/guardians

d. The name, address, telephone number, and other relevant personal information about the
person who might have abused or neglected the child

e. The information that gave rise to the reasonable suspicion of child abuse or neglect and
the source(s) of that information

The mandated reporter shall make a report even if some of this information is not known or is
uncertain to him/her.  (Penal Code 11167)

The mandated reporter may give to an investigator from an agency investigating the case,
including a licensing agency, any information relevant to an incident of child abuse or neglect or
to a report made for serious emotional damage pursuant to Penal Code 11166.05.  (Penal Code
11167)

3. Internal Reporting

The mandated reporter shall not be required to disclose his/her identity to his/her supervisor, the
principal, or the Superintendent or designee.  (Penal Code 11166)

However, employees reporting child abuse or neglect to an appropriate agency are encouraged,
but not required, to notify the principal as soon as possible after the initial telephone report to the
appropriate agency.  When so notified, the principal shall inform the Superintendent or designee.

The principal so notified shall provide the mandated reporter with any assistance necessary to
ensure that reporting procedures are carried out in accordance with law, Board policy, and
administrative regulation. At the mandated reporter's request, the principal may assist in
completing and filing the necessary forms.

Reporting the information to an employer, supervisor, principal, school counselor, co-worker, or
other person shall not be a substitute for making a mandated report to the appropriate agency.
(Penal Code 11166)

Training

Training of mandated reporters shall include identification and mandated reporting of child abuse and
neglect.  (Penal Code 11165.7)

Training shall also include guidance in the appropriate discipline of students, physical contact with



5

students, and maintenance of ethical relationships with students to avoid actions that may be
misinterpreted as child abuse.

Within the first six weeks of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall provide training on
mandated reporting requirements to district employees and persons working on their behalf who are
mandated reporters. Any school personnel hired during the school year shall receive such training within
the first six weeks of employment.  (Education Code 44691; Penal Code 11165.7)

(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)

The Superintendent or designee shall use the online training module provided by the California
Department of Social Services. (Education Code 44691)

The training shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, training in identification and reporting of
child abuse and neglect. In addition, the training shall include information that failure to report an
incident of known or reasonably suspected child abuse or neglect as required by law is a misdemeanor
punishable by imprisonment and/or a fine as specified. (Education Code 44691; Penal Code 11165.7)

The Superintendent or designee shall obtain and retain proof of each mandated reporter's completion of
the training.  (Education Code 44691)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

Victim Interviews by Social Services
Whenever the Department of Social Services or another government agency is investigating suspected
child abuse or neglect that occurred within the child's home or out-of-home care facility. , the student
may be interviewed by an agency representative during school hours, on school premises. The
childSuperintendent or designee shall be givengive the student the choice of being interviewed in private
or in the presence of any adult school employee or volunteer aide selected by the childstudent.  (Penal
Code 11174.3)

A staff member or volunteer aide selected by a child may decline to be present at the interview. If the
selected person accepts, the principal or designee shall inform him/her of the following requirements:
(Penal Code 11174.3)

1. The purpose of the selected person's presence at the interview is to lend support to the child and
enable him/her to be as comfortable as possible.

2. The selected person shall not participate in the interview.

3. The selected person shall not discuss the facts or circumstances of the case with the child.

4. The selected person is subject to the confidentiality requirements of the Child Abuse and Neglect
Reporting Act, a violation of which is punishable as specified in Penal Code 11167.5.



6

If a staff member agrees to be present, the interview shall be held at a time during school hours when it
does not involve an expense to the school.  (Penal Code 11174.3)

Release of Child to Peace Officer

When a child is released to a peace officer and taken into custody as a victim of suspected child abuse
or neglect, the Superintendent or designee and/or principal shall not notify the parent/guardian, but rather
shall provide the peace officer with the address and telephone number of the child's parent/guardian. It
is the responsibility of the peace officer or agent to notify the parent/guardian of the situation. (Education
Code 48906)

(cf. 5145.11 - Questioning and Apprehension by Law Enforcement)

Parent/Guardian Complaints

Upon request, the Superintendent or designee shall provide parents/guardians with a copy of this
administrative regulation which contains procedures for reporting suspected child abuse occurring at a
school site to appropriate agencies.  For parents/guardians whose primary language is not English, such
procedures shall be in their primary language and, when communicating orally regarding those
procedures, an interpreter shall be provided.

To file a complaint against a district employee or other person suspected of child abuse or neglect at a
school site, parents/guardians may file a report by telephone, in person, or in writing with any appropriate
agency identified above under "Reporting Procedures." If a parent/guardian makes a complaint about an
employee to any other employee, the employee receiving the information shall notify the parent/guardian
of procedures for filing a complaint with the appropriate agency.  The employee also is obligated
pursuant to Penal Code 11166 to file a report himself/herself using the procedures described above for
mandated reporters.

(cf. 1312.1 - Complaints Concerning District Employees)

In addition, if the child is enrolled in special education, a separate complaint may be filed with the
California Department of Education pursuant to 5 CCR 4650.

(cf. 1312.3 - Uniform Complaint Procedures)

Notifications

The Superintendent or designee shall provide to all new employees who are mandated reporters a
statement that informs them of their status as mandated reporters, their reporting obligations under Penal
Code 11166, and their confidentiality rights under Penal Code 11167.  The district also shall provide
these new employees with a copy of Penal Code 11165.7, 11166, and 11167. (Penal Code 11165.7,
11166.5)

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)

Before beginning employment, any person who will be a mandated reporter by virtue of his/her position
shall sign a statement indicating that he/she has knowledge of the reporting obligations under Penal Code



7

11166 and will comply with those provisions.  The signed statement shall be retained by the
Superintendent or designee.  (Penal Code 11166.5)

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)

Employees who work with dependent adults shall be notified of legal responsibilities and reporting
procedures pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 15630-15637.

The Superintendent or designee also shall notify all employees that:

1. A mandated reporter who reports a known or suspected instance of child abuse or neglect shall
not be held civilly or criminally liable for making a report and this immunity shall apply even if
the mandated reporter acquired the knowledge or reasonable suspicion of child abuse or neglect
outside of his/her professional capacity or outside the scope of his/her employment. Any other
person making a report shall not incur civil or criminal liability unless it can be proven that he/she
knowingly made a false report or made a report with reckless disregard of the truth or falsity of
the report.  (Penal Code 11172)

2. If a mandated reporter fails to timely report an incident of known or reasonably suspected child
abuse or neglect, he/she may be guilty of a crime punishable by a fine and/or imprisonment.
(Penal Code 11166)

3. No employee shall be subject to any sanction by the district for making a report. unless it can be
shown that he/she knowingly made a false report or made a report with reckless disregard of the
truth or falsity of the report. (Penal Code 11166)

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Regulation
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised: June 14, 2011
revised:  March 10, 2015 Loyalton, California



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy

BP 5141.4

Child Abuse Prevention
CHILD ABUSE PREVENTION AND REPORTING

The Governing Board of Education recognizes is committed to supporting the district's
responsibility to educatesafety and well-being of district students about and desires to facilitate the
dangers prevention of and response to child abuse so that they will acquire the skills and techniques
needed to identify unsafe situations and to react appropriately and neglect. The Superintendent or
designee shall develop and implement strategies for preventing, recognizing, and promptly
reporting known or suspected child abuse and neglect.

The Superintendent or designee may provide a student who is a victim of abuse with school-based
mental health services or other support services and/or may refer the student to resources available
within the community as needed.

(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)
(cf. 5141.6 - School Health Services)
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)

Child Abuse Prevention

The district's instructional program shall may include age-appropriate and culturally sensitive child
abuse prevention curriculum.  This curriculum shall explain students' right to live free of abuse,
include instruction in the skills and techniques needed to identify unsafe situations and react
appropriately and promptly, inform themstudents of available support resources, and teach
themstudents how to obtain help and disclose incidents of abuse.  The curriculum also shall include
training in self-protection techniques.

(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education)
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study)

The district's program also may include age-appropriate curriculum in sexual abuse and sexual
assault awareness and prevention. Upon written request of a student's parent/guardian, the student
shall be excused from taking such instruction.  (Education Code 51900.6)

The Superintendent or designee shall , to the extent feasible, seek to incorporate community
resources into the district's child abuse prevention programs.  To the extent feasible, the
Superintendent or designee shall and may use these community resources to provide
parents/guardians with instruction in parenting skills and child abuse prevention.

(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)



2

Child Abuse Reporting

The Superintendent or designee shall establish procedures for the identification and reporting of
such incidentsknown and suspected child abuse and neglect in accordance with law.

(cf. 4119.21/4219.21/4319.21 - Professional Standards)
(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

Procedures for reporting child abuse shall be included in the district and/or school comprehensive
safety plan.  (Education Code 32282)

(cf. 0450 - Comprehensive Safety Plan)

District employees who are mandated reporters, as defined by law and administrative regulation,
are obligated to report all known or suspected incidents of child abuse and neglect. Mandated
reporters shall not investigate any suspected incidents but rather shall cooperate with agencies
responsible for investigating and prosecuting cases of child abuse and neglect.

The Superintendent or designee shall provide training regarding the duties of mandated reporters.

In the event that training is not provided to mandated reporters, the Superintendent or designee
shall report to the California Department of Education the reasons that such training is not
provided. (Penal Code 11165.7).

Legal Reference:
EDUCATION CODE
32280-32288  Comprehensive school safety plans
33195  Heritage schools, mandated reporters
33308.1  Guidelines on procedure for filing child abuse complaints
44690-44252  Teacher credentialing
44691  Staff development in the detection of child abuse and neglect
44807 Duty concerning conduct of students
48906  Notification when student released to peace officer
48987  Dissemination of reporting guidelines to parents
49001 Prohibition of corporal punishment
51220.5  Parenting skills education
51900.6  Sexual abuse and sexual assault awareness and prevention
PENAL CODE
152.3  Duty to report murder, rape, or lewd or lascivious act
273a  Willful cruelty or unjustifiable punishment of child; endangering life or health
288  Definition of lewd or lascivious act requiring reporting
11164-11174.43 Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE
15630-15637  Dependent adult abuse reporting
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5
4650  Filing complaints with CDE, special education students
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
11434a McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance Act; definitions
COURT DECISIONS
Camreta v. Greene (2011) 131 S.Ct. 2020



3

Management Resources:
CDE LEGAL ADVISORIES
0514.93  Guidelines for parents to report suspected child abuse

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS
Health Education Content Standards for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve
Health Framework for California Public Schools, Kindergarten Through Grade Twelve
WEB SITES
California Attorney General's Office, Crime and Violence Prevention Center:
http://safestate.orgSuspected Child Abuse Report Form:
http://www.ag.ca.gov/childabuse/pdf/ss_8572.pdf
California Department of Education, Safe Schools: http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/ap
California Department of Social Services, Children and Family Services Division:
http://www.childsworld.ca.gov
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, National Clearinghouse on Child Abuse and
NeglectWelfare Information:  http://nccanch.acf.hhs Gateway: https://www.childwelfare.gov/can

SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Policy
adopted: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
Revised:  March 10, 2015 Loyalton, California

http://safestate.orgSuspected
http://www.ag.ca.gov/childabuse/pdf/ss_8572.pdf
http://www.cde.ca.gov/ls/ss/ap
http://www.childsworld.ca.gov
http://nccanch.acf.hhs
www.childwelfare.gov/can


1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation

Students AR 5141.21

ADMINISTERING MEDICATION AND MONITORING HEALTH CONDITIONS

Definitions

Authorized health care provider means an individual who is licensed by the State of California to
prescribe or order medication, including, but not limited to, a physician or physician assistant.
(Education Code 49423; 5 CCR 601)

Other designated school personnel means any individual employed by the district, including a
nonmedical school employee, who has volunteered or consented to administer the medication or
otherwise assist the student and who may legally administer the medication to the student or assist
the student in the administration of the medication.  (5 CCR 601, 621)

Medication may include not only a substance dispensed in the United States by prescription, but
also a substance that does not require a prescription, such as over-the-counter remedies, nutritional
supplements, and herbal remedies.  (5 CCR 601)

Emergency medical assistance for a student suffering an epileptic seizure means the administration
of an emergency antiseizure medication such as diazepam rectal gel and other emergency
medications approved by the federal Food and Drug Administration for patients suffering from
epileptic seizures.  (Education Code 49414.7; 5 CCR 621)

Epinephrine auto-injector means a disposable drug delivery system with a spring-activated needle
that is designed for emergency administration of epinephrine to provide rapid, convenient first aid
for persons suffering a potentially fatal reaction to anaphylaxis.  (Education Code 49414)

Anaphylaxis means a potentially life-threatening hypersensitivity to a substance, which may result
from an insect sting, food allergy, drug reaction, exercise, or other cause. Symptoms may include
shortness of breath, wheezing, difficulty breathing, difficulty talking or swallowing, hives, itching,
swelling, shock, or asthma.  (Education Code 49414)

(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management)
(cf. 5141.27 - Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs)

Notifications to Parents/Guardians

At the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall notify parents/guardians
of the options available to students who need to take prescribed medication
during the school day and the rights and responsibilities of parents/guardians regarding those
options.  (Education Code 49480)



2

(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall inform the parents/guardians of any student on a
continuing medication regimen for a nonepisodic condition of the following requirements:
(Education Code 49480)

1. The parent/guardian is required to inform the school nurse or other designated employee
of the medication being taken, the current dosage, and the name of the supervising
physician.

2. With the parent/guardian's consent, the school nurse or other designated employee may
communicate with the student's physician regarding the medication and its effects and may
counsel school personnel regarding the possible effects of the medication on the student's
physical, intellectual, and social behavior, as well as possible behavioral signs and
symptoms of adverse side effects, omission, or overdose.

Parent/Guardian Responsibilities

The responsibilities of the parent/guardian of any student who may need medication during the
school day shall include, but are not limited to:

1. Providing parent/guardian and authorized health care provider written statements each
school year as described in the sections "Parent/Guardian Statement" and "Health Care
Provider Statement" below. In addition, theThe parent/guardian shall provide a new
authorized health care provider's statement if the medication, dosage, frequency of
administration, or reason for administration changes. (Education Code 49414.5, 49414.7,
49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 600, 626)

2. If the student is on a continuing medication regimen for a nonepisodic condition, informing
the school nurse or other designated certificated employee of the medication being taken,
the current dosage, and the name of the supervising physician. and updating the information
when needed. (Education Code 49480)

3. If the student suffers from epilepsy, notifying the principal or designee whenever the
student has had an emergency antiseizure medication administered to him/her within the
past four hours on a school day.  (Education Code 49414.7)

4. Providing medications in properly labeled, original containers along with the authorized
health care provider's instructions.  For prescribed or ordered medication, the container
also shall bear the name and telephone number of the pharmacy, the student's identification,
and the name and phone number of the authorized health care provider.  (5 CCR 606)

Parent/Guardian Statement

When district employees are to administer medication to a student, the parent/guardian's written
statement shall:



3

1. Identify the student

2. Grant permission for an authorized district representative to communicate directly with the
student's authorized health care provider and pharmacist, as may be necessary, regarding
the health care provider's written statement or any other questions that may arise with
regard to the medication

3. Contain an acknowledgment that the parent/guardian understands how district employees
will administer the medication or otherwise assist the student in its administration

4. Contain an acknowledgment that the parent/guardian understands his/her responsibilities
to enable district employees to administer or otherwise assist the student in the
administration of medication, including, but not limited to, the parent/guardian's
responsibility to provide a written statement from the authorized health care provider, to
ensure that the medication is delivered to the school in a proper container by an individual
legally authorized to be in possession of the medication, and to provide all necessary
supplies and equipment

5. Contain an acknowledgment that the parent/guardian understands that he/she may
terminate the consent for the administration of the medication or for otherwise assisting
the student in the administration of medication at any time

In addition to the requirements in items #1-5 above, if a parent/guardian has requested that his/her
child be allowed to carry and self-administer prescription auto-injectable epinephrine or
prescription inhaled asthma medication, the parent/guardian's written statement shall:  (Education
Code 49423, 49423.1)

1. Consent to the self-administration

2. Release the district and school personnel from civil liability if the student suffers an adverse
reaction as a result of self-administering the medication

In addition to the requirements in items #1-5 above, if a parent/guardian wishes to designate an
individual who is not an employee of the district to administer medication to his/her child, the
parent/guardian's written statement shall clearly identify the individual and shall state:

1. The individual's willingness to accept the designation

2. That the individual is permitted to be on the school site

3. Any limitations on the individual's authority

Health Care Provider Statement

When any district employee is to administer prescribed medication to a student, or when a student
is to be allowed to carry and self-administer auto-injectable epinephrine or prescribed



4

diabetes or asthma medication during school hours, the authorized health care provider's written
statement shall include:

1. Clear identification of the student  (Education Code 49414.7, 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602,
626)

2. The name of the medication  (Education Code 49414.7, 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602, 626)

3. The method, amount, and time schedules by which the medication is to be taken (Education
Code 49414.7, 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602, 626)

4. If a parent/guardian has requested that his/her child be allowed to self-administer
medication, confirmation that the student is able to self-administer the medication
(Education Code 49423, 49423.1; 5 CCR 602)

(cf. 5141.23 - Asthma Management)
(cf. 5141.27 - Food Allergies/Special Dietary Needs)

5. For medication that is to be administered on an as-needed basis, the specific symptoms that
would necessitate administration of the medication, allowable frequency for
administration, and indications for referral for medical evaluation

6. Possible side effects of the medication

7. Name, address, telephone number, and signature of the student's authorized health care
provider

When authorizing a district employee to administer emergency antiseizure medication to a student,
the authorized health care provider's written statement shall also include the following:  (Education
Code 49414.7; 5 CCR 626)

1. Detailed seizure symptoms, including frequency, type, or length of seizures that identify
when the administration of the medication becomes necessary

2. Any potential adverse responses by the student and recommended mitigation actions,
including when to call emergency services

3. A protocol for observing the student after a seizure, including, but not limited to,
whether he/she should rest in the school office or return to his/her class and the length of
time he/she should be under direct observation

4. A statement that, following a seizure, a school administrator or other staff member shall
contact the school nurse and the student's parent/guardian to continue the observation plan

District Responsibilities

The school nurse or other designated school personnel shall:



5

1. Administer or assist in administering medications medication in accordance with the
authorized health care provider's written statement

2. Accept delivery of medications from parents/guardians and count and record them upon
receipt

3. Maintain a list of students needing medication during the school day, including those
authorized to self-administer medications medication, and note on the list the type of
medication and the times and dosage to be administered

4. Maintain for each student a medication log which may:

a. Specify the student's name, medication, dose, method of administration, time of
administration during the regular school day, date on which the student is required
to take the medication, and the authorized health care provider's name and contact
information

b. Contain space for daily recording of the date, time, and amount of medication
administered, and the signature of the individual administering the medication

5. Maintain for each student a medication record which may include the authorized health
care provider's written statement, the parent/guardian's written statement, the medication
log, and any other written documentation related to the administration of medication to the
student

6. Ensure that student confidentiality is appropriately maintained

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

7. Coordinate and, as appropriate, ensure the administration of medication during field trips
and other school-related activities

(cf. 5148.2 - Before/After School Programs)
(cf. 6145.2 - Athletic Competition)
(cf. 6153 - School-Sponsored Trips)

8. Report to a student's parent/guardian and the site administrator any refusal by the student
to take his/her medication

9. Keep all medication to be administered by the district in a locked drawer or cabinet

10. As needed, communicate with a student's authorized health care provider and/or pharmacist
regarding the medication and its effects



6

11. Counsel other designated school personnel regarding the possible effects of a medication
on a student's physical, intellectual, and social behavior, as well as possible behavioral
signs and symptoms of adverse side effects, omission, or overdose

12. Ensure that any unused, discontinued, or outdated medication is returned to the student's
parent/guardian at the end of the school year or, if the medication cannot be returned,
dispose of it in accordance with state laws and local ordinances

13. Provide immediate medical assistance if needed and report to the site administrator, the
student's parent/guardian, and, if necessary, the student's authorized health care provider
any instance when a medication is not administered properly, including administration of
the wrong medication or failure to administer the medication in accordance with authorized
health care provider's written statement

Additional Requirements for Management of Epileptic Seizures

In addition to applicable provisions in the sections above, the Superintendent or designee shall
make arrangements for assisting students with epilepsy who may suffer a seizure at school.  Such
arrangements shall include the following:  (Education Code 49414.7; 5 CCR 620-627)

1. 1.Services or Accommodations: Whenever a parent/guardian requests that a nonmedical
district employee be trained to provide emergency medical assistance to his/her child,
notification to the parent/guardian shall be notified that the child may qualify for services
or accommodations pursuant to 20 USC 1400-1482, the Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act (IDEA), or 29 USC 794, Section 504 of the federal Rehabilitation Act of
1973 (Section 504).

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education Under Section 504)

The Superintendent or designee mayshall assist the parent/guardian to explore that option
and mayshall encourage him/her to adopt the option if the student is determined to be
eligible for such service or accommodation.

2. The creation of If the student's parent/guardian refuses to have him/her assessed for
services or accommodations under IDEA or Section 504, the Superintendent or designee
may develop an individualized health plan, seizure action plan, or other appropriate health
plan designed to acknowledge and prepare for the student's health care needs in school, if
his/her parent/guardian refuses to have him/her assessed for services or accommodations
under IDEA or Section 504.

(cf. 6159 - Individualized Education Program)

3. 2. Request for Volunteers: The distribution ofSuperintendent or designee shall
distribute an electronic notice to school staff no more than twice per school year, for each
per student whose parent/guardian has requested provision of emergency medical



7

assistance pursuant to Education Code 49414.7.  The notice shall be in bold print and, in
accordance with Education Code 49414.7, shall contain a description of the request for a
volunteer school employee, the training that such volunteer school employee will receive,
the voluntary nature of the program, and the timelines for the volunteer school employee
to rescind his/her offer. No other means of soliciting volunteer school employees shall be
conducted.

(cf. 4112.9/4212.9/4312.9 - Employee Notifications)

If no employee volunteers to administer emergency antiseizure medication to a student, the
Superintendent or designee shall again notify the student's parent/guardian of the option to
have the student assessed for services and accommodations under IDEA or Section 504.

4.3.Training: Any employee who volunteers to administer an emergency antiseizure medication
shall receive from a licensed health care professional the training specified in 5 CCR 623 before
administering such medication.

When a trained employee has not administered an emergency antiseizure medication to a
student within two years after completing the training and a student who may need the
administration of an emergency antiseizure medication is enrolled in the school, the
employee shall be retrained in order to retain the ability to administer an emergency
antiseizure medication.

5. An assurance that any training provided for district employees who volunteer to administer
emergency antiseizure medication to students The training shall include, but is not limited
to:

a. Recognition and treatment of different types of seizures

b. Administration of an emergency antiseizure medication

c. Basic emergency follow-up procedures, including, but not limited to, a requirement
for the principal or designee to call the emergency 911 telephone number and to
contact the student's parent/guardian, but not necessarily to transport the student to
an emergency room

d. Techniques and procedures to ensure student privacy

(cf. 4131 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development)
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development)
(cf. 5022 - Student and Family Privacy Rights)

When a trained employee has not administered an emergency antiseizure medication to a
student within two years after completing the training and a student who may need the
administration of an emergency antiseizure medication is enrolled in the school, the
employee shall be retrained in order to retain the ability to administer an emergency
antiseizure medication.



8

6. 4.Notification of Administration: The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process
for notifying the credentialed school nurse, or the Superintendent or designee as applicable,
whenever an employee administers an emergency antiseizure medication to a student at a
school site.

75. Supervision of volunteer Volunteers: Volunteer school employees shall be supervised by a
licensed health care professional, in accordance with 5 CCR 627.

Emergency Epinephrine Auto-Injectors

The Superintendent or designee shall provide epinephrine auto-injectors to school nurses or other
employees who have volunteered to administer them in an emergency and have received training.
The school nurse, or a volunteer employee when a school nurse or physician is unavailable, may
administer an epinephrine auto-injector to provide emergency medical aid to any person suffering,
or reasonably believed to be suffering, from potentially life-threatening symptoms of anaphylaxis
at school or a school activity.  (Education Code 49414)

At least once per school year, the Superintendent or designee shall distribute to all staff a notice
requesting volunteers to be trained to administer an epinephrine auto-injector and describing the
training that the volunteer will receive.  (Education Code 49414)

The principal or designee at each school may designate one or more volunteers to receive initial
and annual refresher training, which shall be provided by a school nurse or other qualified person
designated by a physician and surgeon authorized pursuant to Education Code 49414, and shall be
based on the standards developed by the Superintendent of Public Instruction. Written materials
covering the required topics for training shall be retained by the school for reference. (Education
Code 49414)

A school nurse or other qualified supervisor of health, or a district administrator if the district does
not have a qualified supervisor of health, shall obtain a prescription for epinephrine auto-injectors
for each school from an authorized physician and surgeon.  Such prescription may be filled by
local or mail order pharmacies or epinephrine auto-injector manufacturers. Elementary schools
shall, at a minimum, be provided one adult (regular) and one junior epinephrine auto-injector.
Secondary schools shall be provided at least one adult (regular) epinephrine auto-injector, unless
there are any students at the school who require a junior epinephrine auto-injector.  (Education
Code 49414)

If an epinephrine auto-injector is used, the school nurse or other qualified supervisor of health shall
restock the epinephrine auto-injector as soon as reasonably possible, but no later than two weeks
after it is used. In addition, epinephrine auto-injectors shall be restocked before their expiration
date.  (Education Code 49414)

Information regarding defense and indemnification provided by the district for any and all civil
liability for volunteers administering epinephrine auto-injectors shall be provided to each volunteer
and retained in his/her personnel file.  (Education Code 49414)

(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files)



9

A school may accept gifts, grants, and donations from any source for the support of the school in
carrying of the requirements of Education Code 49414, including, but not limited to, the
acceptance of epinephrine auto-injectors from a manufacturer or wholesaler.  (Education Code
49414)

(cf. 3290 - Gifts, Grants and Bequests)

The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records regarding the acquisition and disposition of
epinephrine auto-injectors for a period of three years from the date the records were created.
(Business and Professions Code 4119.2)

(cf. 3580 - District Records)

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised:  April 13, 2010
revised:  June 14, 2011
revised:  May 8, 2012
revised:  March 11, 2014 Loyalton, California
revised:  March 10, 2015



1

1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Administrative Regulation

Students AR 5144.1(a)

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS

Definitions

Suspension from school means removal of a student from ongoing instruction for adjustment purposes.  However,
suspension does not mean any of the following:  (Education Code 48925)

1. Reassignment to another education program or class at the same school where the student will receive
continuing instruction for the length of day prescribed by the Governing Board of Education for students
of the same grade level.

2. Referral to a certificated employee designated by the principal to advise students.

3. Removal from the class, but without reassignment to another class or program, for the remainder of the
class period without sending the student to the principal or designee as provided in Education Code 48910.
Removal from a particular class shall not occur more than once every five school days.

Expulsion means removal of a student from the immediate supervision and control or the general supervision of
school personnel.  (Education Code 48925)

Day means a calendar day unless otherwise specifically provided.  (Education Code 48925)
School day means a day upon which the schools of the district are in session or weekdays during the summer
recess.  (Education Code 48925)
Principal's designee means one or more administrators or, if there is not a second administrator at one school site,
a certificated person specifically designated by the principal, in writing, to assist with disciplinary procedures.
Only one such person may be designated at any time as the principal's primary designee and only one such person
may be designated as secondary designee for the school year.  The names of such persons shall be on file in the
principal's office.  (Education Code 48911)
School property, for the purposes described in Education Code 48900, includes, but is not limited to, electronic
files and databases.  (Education Code 48900(u))

Notice of Regulations

At the beginning of each school year, the principal of each school shall ensure that all students and
parents/guardians are notified in writing of all school rules related
to discipline, including suspension and expulsion.  (Education Code 35291, 48900.1, 48980)

(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 5145.6 - Parental Notifications)

Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion:  Grades K-12



2

2

Acts for which a student, including a student with disabilities, may be suspended or expelled shall be only those
specified as follows:

(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

1. Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person; willfully used force
or violence upon another person, except in self-defense; or committed as an aider or abettor, as adjudged
by a juvenile court, a crime of physical violence in which the victim suffered great or serious bodily injury
(Education Code 48900(a) and (t))

2. Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, knife, explosive, or other dangerous object, unless,
in the case of possession of any object of this type, the student had obtained written permission to possess
the item from a certificated school employee, with the principal or designee's concurrence  (Education
Code 48900(b))

(cf. 5131 - Conduct)
(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)

3. Unlawfully possessed, used, sold, otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of any controlled
substance as defined in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any
kind  (Education Code 48900(c))

(cf. 5131.6 - Alcohol and Other Drugs)

4. Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in Health and
Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any kind, and then sold, delivered, or
otherwise furnished to any person another liquid, substance, or material and represented same as such
controlled substance, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant  (Education Code 48900(d))

5. Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion  (Education Code 48900(e))

6. Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property (Education Code 48900(f))

7. Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property (Education Code 48900(g))

8. Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including, but not limited
to, cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets, and betel,
except that this restriction shall not prohibit a student from using or possessing his/her own prescription
products  (Education Code 48900(h))

(cf. 5131.62 - Tobacco)

9. Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity  (Education Code 48900(i))

10. Unlawfully possessed, offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug paraphernalia, as defined in Health
and Safety Code 11014.5  (Education Code 48900(j))

1211. Knowingly received stolen school property or private property (Education Code 48900(l))



3

3

1312. Possessed an imitation firearm  (Education Code 48900(m))

Imitation firearm means a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical properties to an
existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a firearm.  (Education Code
48900(m))

1413. Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 286, 288, 288a,
or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243.4 (Education Code 48900(n))

1514. Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness in a school
disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student
from being a witness and/or retaliating against that student for being a witness (Education Code 48900(o))

15. Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug Soma  (Education
Code 48900(p))

1716. Engaged in, or attempted to engage in, hazing  (Education Code 48900(q))

Hazing means a method of initiation or pre-initiation into a student organization or body, whether or not
the organization or body is officially recognized by an educational institution, which is likely to cause
serious bodily injury or personal degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former,
current, or prospective student. Hazing does not include athletic events or school-sanctioned events.
(Education Code 48900(q))

17. Engaged in an act of bullying (Education Code 48900(r))

Bullying means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including communications made
in writing or by means of an electronic act, directed toward one or more students that has or can reasonably
be predicted to have the effect of placing a reasonable student in fear of harm to himself/herself or his/her
property; cause the student to experience a substantially detrimental effect on his/her physical or mental
health; or cause the student to experience substantial interferences with his/her academic performance or
ability to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by a school.
(Education Code 48900(r))

Bullying shall include any act of sexual harassment, hate violence, or harassment, threat, or intimidation,
as defined in Education Code 48900.2, 48900.3, or 48900.4 and below in items #1-3 of "Additional
Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-12," that has any of the effects described above on a
reasonable student.

Electronic act means the creation or transmission of a communication originated on or off school site,
including, but not limited to, a message, text, sound, image, or post on a social network Internet web site,
by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other
wireless communication device, computer, or pager. A post on a social network Internet web site shall
include, but is not limited to, the posting or creation of a burn page or the creation of a credible
impersonation or false profile for the purpose of causing a reasonable student any of the effects of bullying
described above. (Education Code 48900(r))



4

4

Reasonable student means a student, including, but not limited to, a student who has been identified as a
student with a disability, who exercises average care, skill, and judgment in conduct for a person of his/her
age, or for a person of his/her age with his/her disability. (Education Code 48900(r))

(cf. 1114 - District-Sponsored Social Media)
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)
(cf. 6163.4 - Student Use of Technology)
(cf. 6164.4 - Identification and Evaluation of Individuals for Special Education)
(cf. 6164.6 - Identification and Education under Section 504)

18. Aided or abetted the infliction or attempted infliction of physical injury on another person, as defined in
Penal Code 31. (Education Code 48900(t))

2019. Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property. (Education Code 48900.7)

A terrorist threat includes any written or oral statement by a person who willfully threatens to commit a
crime which will result in death or great bodily injury to another person or property damage in excess of
$1,000, with the specific intent that the statement is to be taken as a threat, even if there is no intent of
actually carrying it out.  (Education Code 48900.7)

Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion:  Grades 4-12

Any student in grades 4-12 may be suspended, but not expelled, for disrupting school activities or otherwise
willfully defying the valid authority of supervisors, teachers, administrators, other school officials, or other school
personnel engaged in the performance of their duties. (Education Code 48900(k))

(cf. 5131.4 - Student Disturbances)

A student in grades 4-12 is also shall be subject to suspension or recommendation for expulsion when it is
determined that he/she:

211. Committed sexual harassment as defined in Education Code 212.5  (Education Code 48900.2)

Sexual harassment means conduct which, when considered from the perspective of a reasonable person
of the same gender as the victim, is sufficiently severe or pervasive as to have a negative impact upon the
victim's academic performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment.
(Education Code 212.5, 48900.2)

(cf. 5145.7 - Sexual Harassment)

222. Caused, attempted to cause, threatened to cause, or participated in an act of hate violence as defined in
Education Code 233  (Education Code 48900.3)

Hate violence means any act punishable under Penal Code 422.6, 422.7, or 422.75.  Such acts include
injuring or intimidating a victim, interfering with the exercise of a victim's civil rights, or damaging a
victim's property because of the victim's race, ethnicity, religion, nationality, disability, gender, gender
identity, gender expression, or sexual orientation; a perception of the presence of any of those
characteristics in the victim; or the victim's association with a person or group with one or more of those
actual or perceived characteristics.  (Education Code 233; Penal Code 422.55)



5

5

(cf. 5145.9 - Hate-Motivated Behavior)

233. Intentionally engaged in harassment, threats, or intimidation against district personnel or students that is
sufficiently severe or pervasive to have the actual and reasonably expected effect of materially disrupting
classwork, creating substantial disorder, and invading the rights of school personnel or students by
creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment  (Education Code 48900.4)

(cf. 5145.3 - Nondiscrimination/Harassment)

RemovalSuspension from Class by a Teacher

A teacher may remove suspend a student, including a grade K-3 student, from his/her class for the remainder of
the day and the following day only for for disruption, willful defiance, or any of the other acts specified in
Education Code 48900 and listed as items #1-18 under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12"
above.  (Education Code 48910)

When removing suspending a student from his/her class, the teacher shall immediately report this action to the
principal or designee and send the student to the principal or designee for appropriate action.  If that action requires
the continuing presence of the student at school, he/she shall be appropriately supervised during the class periods
from which he/she has been removedsuspended.  (Education Code 48910)

As soon as possible after the teacher decides to removesuspend the student, he/she shall ask the student's
parent/guardian to attend a parent-teacher conference regarding the removalsuspension.  A counselor or
psychologist may attend the conference if it is practicable, and a school administrator shall attend if either the
parent/guardian or teacher so requests.  (Education Code 48910)

A student removedsuspended from class shall not be returned to class during the period of removalthe suspension
without the approval of the teacher of the class and the principal or designee.  (Education Code 48910)

A student removedsuspended from class shall not be placed in another regular class during the period of
removalsuspension.  However, a student assigned to more than one class per day may continue to attend other
regular classes except those held at the same time as the class from which he/she was removedsuspended.
(Education Code 48910)

The teacher of any class from which a student is removedsuspended may require the student to complete any
assignments and tests missed during the removal.  (Education Code 48913)

Pursuant to Board policy, a teacher may require the parent/guardian of a student whom the teacher has removed
to attend a portion of a school day in his/her child's classroom.  When a teacher makes this request, the principal
shall send the parent/guardian a written notice that the parent/guardian's attendance is requested pursuant to law.
(Education Code 48900.1)

The notice shall:

1.Inform the parent/guardian when his/her presence is expected and by what means he/she may arrange an
alternate date



6

6

2.State that if the parent/guardian does not have a means of transportation to school, he/she may ride the school
bus with the student

3.Direct the parent/guardian to meet with the principal after the visit and before leaving school

4.Direct the parent/guardian to contact the school if there are reasonable factors that would prevent him/her from
complying with the attendance requirement

Suspension by Superintendent, Principal, or Designee

Suspension by Superintendent, Principal or Principal's Designee

To implement disciplinary procedures at a school site, the principal may, in writing, designate as the principal's
designee another administrator or, if the principal is the only administrator at the school site, a certificated
employee. As necessary, the principal may, in writing, also designate another administrator or certificated
employee as the secondary designee to assist with disciplinary procedures when the principal and the principal's
primary designee are absent from the school site.

The Superintendent, principal, or designee shall immediately suspend any student found at school or at a school
activity to be:have committed any of the acts listed in the Board policy under "Authority to Expel" and for which
he/she is required to recommend expulsion. (Education Code 48915(c))

1.Possessing, as verified by a district employee, selling, or otherwise furnishing a firearm, unless the student had
obtained prior written permission to possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the principal or
designee's concurrence

2.Brandishing a knife as defined in Education Code 48915(g)

3.Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058

4.Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 286, 288, 288a, or
289, or committing a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243.4

5.Possessing an explosive as defined in 18 USC 921

The Superintendent, principal, or designee may impose a suspension uponfor a first offense if he/she determines
that the student violated any of items #1-5 listed under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12"
above or if the student's presence causes a danger to persons.  (Education Code 48900.5)

For all other offenses, a student may be suspended only when the Superintendent or principal has determined that
other means of correction have failed to bring about proper conduct in the student.  (Education Code 48900.5)

When other means of correction are implemented prior to imposing suspension or supervised suspension upon a
student, the Superintendent, principal, or designee shall document the other means of correction used and retain
them in the student's record.  (Education Code 48900.5)

(cf. 5125 - Student Records)

Deleted because this section
is in Board Policy.



7

7

Length of Suspension

The Superintendent, principal, or designee may suspend a student from school for not more than five consecutive
school days unless the suspension is extended pending expulsion.. (Education Code 48911)

A student may be suspended from school for not more than 20 school days in any school year.  However, whenif
a student enrolls in or is transferred to another regular school, an opportunity school, or continuation school or
class for the purpose of adjustment, he/she may be suspended for not more than 30 school days in a school year.
The district may count suspensions that occur while a student is enrolled in another school district toward the
maximum number of days for which the student may be suspended in any school year.  (Education Code 48903,
48911, 48912)

(cf. 6184 - Continuation Education)

These restrictions on the number of days of suspension shall not apply when the suspension is extended pending
an expulsion.  (Education Code 48911)

Due Process Procedures for Suspension

Suspensions shall be imposed in accordance with the following procedures:

1. Informal Conference: Suspension shall be preceded by an informal conference conducted by the
Superintendent, principal, or designee with the student and, whenever practicable, the teacher, supervisor,
or school employee who referred the student to the principal. At the conference, the student shall be
informed of the reason for the disciplinary action, presented with the available evidence against him/her,
and given the opportunity to present his/her version and evidence in support of his/her defense.  (Education
Code 48911)

This conference may be omitted if the Superintendent, principal, or designee determines that an emergency
situation exists involving a clear and present danger to the lives, safety, or health of students or school
personnel. If a student is suspended without this conference, both the parent/guardian and student shall
be notified of the student's right to return to school for the purpose of the conference.  The and the
conference shall be held within two school days, unless the student waives his/her right to it or is
physically unable to attend for any reason. In such a case, the conference shall be held as soon as the
student is physically able to return to school. (Education Code 48911)

2. Administrative Actions: All requests for student suspension are to be processed by the principal or
designee. A school employee shall report the suspension, including
the name of the student and the cause for the suspension, to the Superintendent or designee.  (Education
Code 48911)

3. Notice to Parents/Guardians: At the time of the suspension, a school employee shall make a reasonable
effort to contact the parent/guardian by telephone or in person. Whenever a student is suspended, the
parent/guardian shall also be notified in writing of the suspension.  (Education Code 48911)

This notice shall state the specific offense committed by the student.  (Education Code 48900.8)



8

8

In addition, the notice may state the date and time when the student may return to school. If school
officials wish to ask the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters pertinent to the suspension, the notice
may add that state law requires the parent/guardian to respond to such requests without delay.

4. Parent/Guardian Conference: Whenever a student is suspended, school officials may meetrequest a
meeting with the parent/guardian to discuss the cause(s) and duration of the suspension, the school policy
involved, and any other pertinent matter.  (Education Code 48914)

AlthoughIf school officials request to meet with the parent/guardian is required, the notice may state that
the law requires the parent/guardian to respond to such requests without delay to a request for a conference
about his/her child's behavior. However, no penalties may be imposed on the student for the failure of the
parent/guardian to attend such a conference. The student may not be denied reinstatement solely because
the parent/guardian failed to attend the conference.  (Education Code 48911)

5. Extension of Suspension: If the Board is considering the expulsion of a suspended student from any
school or the suspension of a student for the balance of the semester from continuation school, the
Superintendent or designee may, in writing, extend the suspension until such time as the Board has made
a decision., provided the following requirements are followed: (Education Code 48911)

a. The extension of the original period of suspension shall be is preceded by notice of such extension
with an offer to hold a conference concerning the extension, giving the student an opportunity to
be heard. This conference may be held in conjunction with a meeting requested by the student or
parent/guardian to challenge the original suspension. Extension of the suspension may be made
only if the

b. The Superintendent or designee determines, following a meeting in which the student and the
student's parent/guardian were invited to participate, that the
student's presence at the school or at an alternative school would endanger persons or property or
threaten to disrupt the instructional process.  (Education Code 48911)

c. If the student involved is a foster youth, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the district
liaison for foster youth of the need to invite the student's attorney and a representative of the
appropriate county child welfare agency to attend the meeting.  (Education Code 48853.5, 48911,
48918.1)

(cf. 6173.1 - Education for Foster Youth)

d. If the student involved is a homeless child or youth, the Superintendent or designee shall notify
the district liaison for homeless students. (Education Code 48918.1)

(cf. 6173 - Education for Homeless Children)

In lieu of or in addition to suspending a student, the Superintendent, principal, or designee may provide services
or require the student to participate in an alternative disciplinary program designed to correct his/her behavior
and keep him/her in school.



9

9

Suspension by the Board

The Board may suspend a student for any of the acts listed under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades
K-12" and "Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-12" above and within the limits specified
under "Suspension by Superintendent, Principal, or Designee" above.  (Education Code 48912)

The Board may suspend a student enrolled in a continuation school or class for a period not longer than the
remainder of the semester if any of the acts listed under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion" occurred.. The
suspension shall meet the requirements of Education Code 48915.  (Education Code 48912.5)

When the Board is considering a suspension, disciplinary action, or any other action (except expulsion) against
any student, it shall hold a closed session if a public hearing would lead to disclosure of information violating a
student's right to privacy under Education Code 49073-49079.  (Education Code 35146, 48912)

(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas)

The Board shall provide the student and his/her parent/guardian with written notice of the closed session by
registered or certified mail or personal service. Upon receiving this notice, the student or parent/guardian may
request a public meeting, and this request shall be granted if made in writing within 48 hours after receipt of the
Board's notice. However, any discussion that conflicts with any other student's right to privacy still shall be held
in closed session.  (Education Code 35146, 48912)

SupervisedOn-Campus Suspension Classroom

A student for whom an expulsion action has not been initiated and who poses no imminent danger or threat to the
school, students, or staff may be assigned to a supervisedon-campus suspension classroom in a separate
classroom, building, or site for the entire period of suspension. The following conditions shall apply:  (Education
Code 48911.1)

1. The supervisedon-campus suspension classroom shall be staffed in accordance with law.

2. The student shall have access to appropriate counseling services.

3. The supervisedon-campus suspension classroom shall promote completion of schoolwork and tests missed
by the student during the suspension.

4. The student shall be responsible for contacting his/her teacher(s) to receive assignments to be completed
in the supervised suspension classroom. The teacher(s) shall provide all assignments and tests that the
student will miss while suspended. If no such work is assigned, the person supervising the suspension
classroom shall assign schoolwork.

At the time a student is assigned to a supervisedan on-campus suspension classroom, the principal or designee
shall notify the student's parent/guardian in person or by telephone. When the assignment is for longer than one
class period, this notification shallmay be made in writing.  (Education Code 48911.1)

Authority to Expel

A student may be expelled only by the Board.  (Education Code 48918(j))



10

10

The Board shall expel, as required by law, any student found to have committed any offense listed below under
"Mandatory Recommendation and Mandatory Expulsion."  (Education Code 48915)

For all other grounds listed above under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion," the Board shall order a student
expelled, upon the recommendation of the Superintendent, principal, or designee, only if the Board makes a
finding of either or both of the following:  (Education Code 48915(b) and (e))

1.That other means of correction are not feasible or have repeatedly failed to bring about proper conduct

2.That due to the nature of the violation, the presence of the student causes a continuing danger to the physical
safety of the student or others

Superintendent, Principal, or Designee'sPrincipal's Authority to Recommend Expulsion

Unless the Superintendent, or principal, or designee determines that expulsion should not be recommended under
the circumstances or that an alternative means of correction would address the conduct, he/she shall recommend
a student's expulsion for any of the following acts:  (Education Code 48915(a)))

1. Causing serious physical injury to another person, except in self-defense

2. Possession of any knife as defined in Education Code 48915(g) or other dangerous object of no reasonable
use to the student

3. Unlawful possession of any controlled substance as listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, except
for (a) the first offense for the possession of not more than one ounce of marijuana, other than concentrated
cannabis, or (b) the student's possession of over-the-counter medication for his/her use or other medication
prescribed for him/her by a physician

4. Robbery or extortion

5. Assault or battery, as defined in Penal Code 240 and 242, upon any school employee

In determining whether or not to recommend the expulsion of a student, the Superintendent, principal, or designee
shall act as quickly as possible to ensure that the student does not lose instructional time.  (Education Code 48915)

Mandatory Recommendation and Mandatory Expulsion

The Superintendent, principal, or designee shall recommend expel any student found at school or at a school
activity to be:

1.Possessing, as verified by a district employee, selling, or otherwise furnishing a firearm, unless the student had
obtained prior written permission to possess the firearm from a certificated school employee, with the principal
or designee's concurrence
However, possession of an imitation firearm, as defined in Education Code 48900(m), shall not be regarded as an
offense requiring a mandatory recommendation for expulsion and mandatory expulsion.

2.Brandishing a knife as defined in Education Code 48915(g) at another person

In Board Policy



11

11

3.Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058

4.Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 286, 288, 288a, or
289, or committing a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243.4

5.Possessing an explosive as defined in 18 USC 921

Upon finding that the student committed any of the above acts, the Board shall expel the student.  (Education
Code 48915)

Right to Expulsion Hearing
Any student recommended for expulsion shall be entitled to a hearing to determine whether he/she should be
expelled. The hearing shall be held within 30 school days after the Superintendent, principal, or designee
determines that the student has committed one of the acts listed above under "Grounds for Suspension and
Expulsion."the act(s) that form the basis for the expulsion recommendation. (Education Code 48918(a))

The student is entitled to at least one postponement of an expulsion hearing for a period of not more than 30
calendar days. The request for postponement shall be in writing. Any subsequent postponement may be granted
at the Board's discretion. (Education Code 48918(a))

If the Board finds it impractical during the regular school year to comply with these time requirements for
conducting an expulsion hearing, the Superintendent or designee may, for good cause, extend the time period by
an additional five school days. Reasons for the extension shall be included as a part of the record when the
expulsion hearing is held.  (Education Code 48918(a))

If the Board finds it impractical to comply with the time requirements of the expulsion hearing due to a summer
recess of Board meetings of more than two weeks, the days during the recess shall not be counted as school days.
The days not counted during the recess may not exceed 20 school days, as defined in Education Code 48925.
Unless the student requests in writing that the expulsion hearing be postponed, the hearing shall be held not later
than 20 calendar days prior to the first day of the next school year.  (Education Code 48918(a))

Once the hearing starts, all matters shall be pursued with reasonable diligence and concluded without unnecessary
delay.  (Education Code 48918(a))

Stipulated Expulsion

After a determination that a student has committed an expellable offense listed above under "Grounds for
Suspension and Expulsion" for which expulsion is permitted or mandatory, the Superintendent, principal, or
designee shall offer the student and his/her parent/guardian the option to waive a hearing and stipulate to the
expulsion. or to a suspension of the expulsion under certain conditions. The offer shall be made only after the
student or his/her parent/guardian has been given written notice of the expulsion hearing pursuant to Education
Code 48918.

The stipulation agreement shall be in writing and shall be signed by the student and his/her parent/guardian.  The
stipulation agreement shall include notice of all the rights that the student is waiving, including the waiving of
his/her right to have a full hearing, to appeal the expulsion to the County Board of Education, and to consult legal
counsel.



12

12

A stipulated expulsion agreed to by the student and his/her parent/guardian shall be effective upon approval by
the Board.

Rights of Complaining Witness

An expulsion hearing involving allegations of sexual assault or sexual battery may be postponed for one school
day in order to accommodate the special physical, mental, or emotional needs of a student who is the complaining
witness.  (Education Code 48918.5)

Whenever the Superintendent or designee recommends an expulsion hearing that addresses allegations of sexual
assault or sexual battery, he/she shall give the complaining witness a copy of the district's suspension and
expulsion policy and regulation and shall advise the witness of his/her right to:  (Education Code 48918.5)

1. Receive five days' notice of his/her scheduled testimony at the hearing

2. Have up to two adult support persons of his/her choosing present at the hearing at the time he/she testifies

3. Have a closed hearing during the time he/she testifies

Whenever any allegation of sexual assault or sexual battery is made, the Superintendent or designee shall
immediately advise complaining witnesses and accused students to refrain from personal or telephone contact
with each other during the time when an expulsion process is pending.  (Education Code 48918.5)

Written Notice of the Expulsion Hearing

Written notice of the expulsion hearing shall be forwarded to the student and the student's parent/guardian at least
10 calendar days before the date of the hearing. The notice shall include:  (Education Code 48900.8, 48918(b))

1. The date and place of the hearing.

2. A statement of the specific facts, charges, and offense upon which the proposed expulsion is based.

3. A copy of district disciplinary rules which relate to the alleged violation.

4. Notification of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation, pursuant to Education Code 48915.1, to
provide information about the student's status in the district to any other district in which the student seeks
enrollment.

This obligation applies when a student is expelled for acts other than those described in Education Code
48915(a) or (c).

(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)

5. The opportunity for the student or the student's parent/guardian to appear in person or be represented by
legal counsel or by a nonattorney advisor.adviser

Legal counsel means an attorney or lawyer who is admitted to the practice of law in California and is an
active member of the State Bar of California.



13

13

Nonattorney advisoradviser means an individual who is not an attorney or lawyer, but who is familiar
with the facts of the case and has been selected by the student or student's parent/guardian to provide
assistance at the hearing.

6. The right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the hearing.

7. The opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who testify at the hearing.

8. The opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral and documentary evidence on the
student's behalf, including witnesses.

Additional Notice of Expulsion Hearing for Foster Youth and Homeless Students

If the student facing expulsion is a foster student, the Superintendent or designee shall also send notice of the
hearing to the student's attorney and a representative of an appropriate child welfare agency at least 10 days prior
to the hearing.  (Education Code 48918.1)

If the student facing expulsion is a homeless student, the Superintendent or designee may provide the same
notification. The notice shall also send notice of the hearing to the district liaison for homeless students at least
10 days prior to the hearing.  (Education Code 48918.1)

Any notice for these purposes may be provided by the most cost-effective method possible, including by email
or a telephone call.  (Education Code 48918.1)

Conduct of Expulsion Hearing

1. Closed Session: Notwithstanding the provisions of Government Code 54953 and Education Code 35145,
the Board shall conduct a hearing to consider the expulsion of the student in a session closed to the public
unless the student requests in writing at least five days prior to the hearing that the hearing be a public
meeting. If such a request is made, the meeting shall be public unless another student'sto the extent that
privacy rights would beof other students are not violated.  (Education Code 48918(c)))

Whether the expulsion hearing is held in closed or public session, the Board may meet in closed session
to deliberate and determine whether or not the student should be expelled. If the Board admits any other
person to this closed session, the parent/guardian, the student, and the counsel of the student also shall be
allowed to attend the closed session.  (Education Code 48918(c))

If a hearing that involves a charge of sexual assault or sexual battery is to be conducted in public, a
complaining witness shall have the right to have his/her testimony heard in closed session when testifying
in public would threaten serious psychological harm to the witness and when there are no alternative
procedures to avoid the threatened harm, including, but not limited to, videotaped deposition or
contemporaneous examination in another place communicated to the hearing room by closed-circuit
television.  (Education Code 48918(c))

2. Record of Hearing: A record of the hearing shall be made and may be maintained by any means,
including electronic recording, as long as a reasonably accurate and complete written transcription of the
proceedings can be made. (Education Code 48918(g))



14

14

3. Subpoenas: Before commencing a student expulsion hearing, the Board may issue subpoenas, at the
request of either the student or the Superintendent or designee, for the personal appearance at the hearing
of any person who actually witnessed the action that gave rise to the recommendation for expulsion. After
the hearing has commenced, the Board or the hearing officer or administrative panel may issue such
subpoenas at the request of the student or the County Superintendent of Schools or designee. All
subpoenas shall be issued in accordance with Code of Civil Procedure 1985-1985.2 and enforced in
accordance with Government Code 11455.20.  (Education Code 48918(i))

Any objection raised by the student or the Superintendent or designee to the issuance of subpoenas may
be considered by the Board in closed session, or in open session if so requested by the student, before the
meeting. The Board's decision in response to such an objection shall be final and binding.  (Education
Code 48918(i))

If the Board determines, or if the hearing officer or administrative panel finds and submits to the Board,
that a witness would be subject to unreasonable risk of harm by testifying at the hearing, a subpoena shall
not be issued to compel the personal attendance of that witness at the hearing. However, that witness may
be compelled to testify by means of a sworn declaration as described in item #4 below.  (Education Code
48918(i))

4. Presentation of Evidence: Technical rules of evidence shall not apply to the expulsion hearing, but
relevant evidence may be admitted and used as proof only if it is the kind of evidence on which reasonable
persons can rely in the conduct of serious affairs.  The decision of the Board to expel shall be supported
by substantial evidence that the student committed any of the acts pursuant to Education Code 48900 and
listed in "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion" above.: Grades K-12" and "Additional Grounds for
Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-12" above. (Education Code 48918(h))

Findings of fact shall be based solely on the evidence at the hearing. Although no finding shall be based
solely on hearsay, sworn declarations may be admitted as testimony from witnesses whose disclosure of
their identity or testimony at the hearing may subject them to an unreasonable risk of physical or
psychological harm.  (Education Code 48918(f))

In cases where a search of a student's person or property has occurred, evidence describing the
reasonableness of the search shall be included in the hearing record.

5. Testimony by Complaining Witnesses: The following procedures shall be observed when a hearing
involves allegations of sexual assault or sexual battery by a student:  (Education Code 48918, 48918.5)

a. Any complaining witness shall be given five days' notice before being called to testify.

b. Any complaining witness shall be entitled to have up to two adult support persons, including, but
not limited to, a parent/guardian or legal counsel, present during his/her testimony.

c. Before a complaining witness testifies, support persons shall be admonished that the hearing is
confidential.

d. The person presiding over the hearing may remove a support person whom he/she finds is
disrupting the hearing.



15

15

e. If one or both support persons are also witnesses, the hearing shall be conducted in accordance
with Penal Code 868.5.

f. Evidence of specific instances of prior sexual conduct of a complaining witness shall be presumed
inadmissible and shall not be heard unless the person conducting the hearing determines that
extraordinary circumstances require the evidence to be heard. Before such a determination is
made, the complaining witness shall be given notice and an opportunity to oppose the introduction
of this evidence. In the hearing on the admissibility of this evidence, the complaining witness
shall be entitled to be represented by a parent/guardian, legal counsel, or other support person.
Reputation or opinion evidence regarding the sexual behavior of a complaining witness shall not
be admissible for any purpose.

g. In order to facilitate a free and accurate statement of the experiences of the complaining witness
and to prevent discouragement of complaints, the district shall provide a nonthreatening
environment.

(1) The district shall provide a room separate from the hearing room for the use of the
complaining witness before and during breaks in testimony.

(2) At the discretion of the person conducting the hearing, the complaining witness shall be
allowed reasonable periods of relief from examination and cross-examination during which
he/she may leave the hearing room.

(3) The person conducting the hearing may:

(a) Arrange the seating within the hearing room so as to facilitate a less intimidating
environment for the complaining witness

(b) Limit the time for taking the testimony of a complaining witness to the hours he/she
is normally in school, if there is no good cause to take the testimony during other
hours

(c) Permit one of the support persons to accompany the complaining witness to the
witness stand

6. Decision: The Board's decision as to whether to expel a student shall be made within 40 school days after
the student is removed from his/her school of attendance, unless the student requests in writing that the
decision be postponed.  (Education Code 48918(a))

Alternative Expulsion Hearing:  Hearing Officer or Administrative Panel

Instead of conducting an expulsion hearing itself, the Board may contract with the county hearing officer or with
the Office of Administrative Hearings of the State of California for a hearing officer. Alternatively, theThe Board
may also appoint an impartial administrative panel composed of three or more certificated personnel, none of
whom shall be members of the Board or on the staff of the school in which the student is enrolled.  (Education
Code 48918(d)))

A hearing conducted by the hearing officer or administrative panel shall conform to the same procedures
applicable to a hearing conducted by the Board as specified above in "Conduct of Expulsion Hearing," including



16

16

the requirement to issue a decision within 40 school days of the student's removal from school, unless the student
requests that the decision be postponed.  (Education Code 48918(a) and (d))

The hearing officer or administrative panel shall, within three school days after the hearing, determine whether
to recommend expulsion of the student to the Board. If expulsion is not recommended, the expulsion proceeding
shall be terminated and the student shall be immediately reinstated. The and permitted to return to the classroom
instructional program from which the referral was made, unless another placement is requested in writing by the
student's parent/guardian.  Before the student's placement decision is made by his/her parent/guardian, the
Superintendent or designee shall place the student in a classroom instructional program, any other instructional
program, a rehabilitation program, or any combination of these programs after consultingconsult with the
parent/guardian and district staff, including the student's teachers, and with the student's parent/guardian.
regarding other placement options for the student in addition to the option to return to the classroom instructional
program from which the student's expulsion referral was made. The decision to not recommend expulsion shall
be final.  (Education Code 48918(e))

If expulsion is recommended, findings of fact in support of the recommendation shall be prepared and submitted
to the Board. All findings of fact and recommendations shall be based solely on the evidence presented at the
hearing. The Board may accept the recommendation based either upon a review of the findings of fact and
recommendations submitted or upon the results of any supplementary hearing the Board may order.  (Education
Code 48918(f))

In accordance with Board policy, the hearing officer or administrative panel may recommend that the Board
suspend the enforcement of the expulsion for a period of one year.. If the hearing officer or administrative panel
recommends that the Board expel a student but suspend the enforcement of the expulsion, the student shall not be
reinstated and permitted to return to the classroom instructional program from which the referral was made until
the Board has ruled on the recommendation. (Education Code 48917, 48918)

Final Action by the Board

Whether the expulsion hearing is conducted in closed or public session by the Board, a hearing officer, or an
administrative panel or is waived through the signing of a stipulated expulsion agreement, the final action to expel
shall be taken by the Board at ain public meeting.  (Education Code 48918(j))

(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports)

If the Board conducts the hearing and reaches a The Board's decision is final. If the decision is to not to expel,
this decision shall be final and the student shall be reinstated immediately.  If the decision is to suspend the
enforcement of the expulsion, the student shall be reinstated immediately under the conditions of the suspended
expulsion.

Upon ordering an expulsion, the Board shall set a date when the student shall be reviewed for readmission to a
school within the district. For a student expelled for any act listed under "Mandatory Recommendation and
Mandatory Expulsion" above, this date shall be one year from the date the expulsion occurred, except that the
Board may set an earlier date on a case-by-case basis.  For a student expelled for other acts, this date shall be no
later than the last day of the semester following the semester in which the expulsion occurred. If an expulsion is
ordered during summer session or the intersession period of a year-round program, the Board shall set a date
when the student shall be reviewed for readmission not later than the last day of the semester following the
summer session or intersession period in which the expulsion occurred.  (Education Code 48916)



17

17

At the time of the expulsion order, the Board shall recommend a plan for the student's rehabilitation, which may
include:  (Education Code 48916)

1. Periodic review, as well as assessment at the time of review, for readmission

2. Recommendations for improved academic performance, tutoring, special education assessments, job
training, counseling, employment, community service, or other rehabilitative programs

With parent/guardian consent, students who have been expelled for reasons relating to controlled substances or
alcohol may be required to enroll in a county-sponsored drug rehabilitation program before returning to school.
(Education Code 48916.5)

Written Notice to Expel

The Superintendent or designee shall send written notice of the decision to expel to the student or parent/guardian.
This notice shall include the following:

1. The specific offense committed by the student for any of the causes for suspension or expulsion listed
above under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12" or "Additional Grounds for
Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-12"  (Education Code 48900.8)

2. The fact that a description of readmission procedures will be made available to the student and his/her
parent/guardian  (Education Code 48916)

3. Notice of the right to appeal the expulsion to the County Board (Education Code 48918)

4. Notice of the alternative educational placement to be provided to the student during the time of expulsion
(Education Code 48918)

5. Notice of the student's or parent/guardian's obligation to inform any new district in which the student seeks
to enroll of the student's status with the expelling district, pursuant to Education Code 48915.1  (Education
Code 48918)

Decision Not to EnforceSuspend Expulsion Order

In accordance with Board policy, when deciding whether to suspend the enforcement of an expulsion order, the
Board shall take into account the following criteria:

1. The student's pattern of behavior

2. The seriousness of the misconduct

3. The student's attitude toward the misconduct and his/her willingness to follow a rehabilitation program

The suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion shall be governed by the following:

1. The Board may, as a condition of the suspension of enforcement, assign the student to a school, class, or
program appropriate for the student's rehabilitation. This rehabilitation program may provide for the
involvement of the student's parent/guardian in the student's education. However, a parent/guardian's



18

18

refusal to participate in the rehabilitation program shall not be considered in the Board's determination as
to whether the student has satisfactorily completed the rehabilitation program.  (Education Code 48917)

2. During the period when enforcement of the expulsion order is suspended, the student shall be on
probationary status.  (Education Code 48917)

3. The suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion order may be revoked by the Board if the student
commits any of the acts listed under "Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12" or "Additional
Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades 4-12" above or violates any of the district's rules and
regulations governing student conduct.  (Education Code 48917)

4. When the suspension of enforcement of an expulsion order is revoked, a student may be expelled under
the terms of the original expulsion order.  (Education Code 48917)

5. Upon satisfactory completion of the rehabilitation assignment, the Board shall reinstate the student in a
district school.  Upon reinstatement, the Board may order the expunging of any or all records of the
expulsion proceedings.  (Education Code 48917)

6. The Superintendent or designee shall send written notice of any decision to suspend the enforcement of
an expulsion order during a period of probation to the student or parent/guardian. The notice shall inform
the parent/guardian of the right to appeal the expulsion to the County Board, the alternative educational
placement to be provided to the student during the period of expulsion, and the student's or
parent/guardian's obligation to inform any new district in which the student seeks to enroll of his/her status
with the expelling district, pursuant to Education Code 48915.1(b).  (Education Code 48918(j))

7. Suspension of the enforcement of an expulsion order shall not affect the time period and requirements for
the filing of an appeal of the expulsion order with the County Board.  (Education Code 48917)

Right to Appeal

The student or parent/guardian is entitled to file an appeal of the Board's decision with the County Board.  The
appeal must be filed within 30 days of the Board's decision to expel, even if the expulsion order is suspended and
the student is placed on probation.  (Education Code 48919)

If the student shall submitsubmits a written request for a copy of the written transcripts and supporting documents
from the district simultaneously with the filing of the notice of appeal with the County Board.  The, the district
shall provide the student with these documents within 10 school days following the student's written request.
(Education Code 48919)

Notification to Law Enforcement Authorities

Prior to the suspension or expulsion of any student, the principal or designee shall notify appropriate city or county
law enforcement authorities of any student acts of assault which may have violated Penal Code 245.  (Education
Code 48902)

The principal or designee also shall notify appropriate city or county law enforcement authorities of any student
acts which may involve the possession or sale of narcotics or of a controlled substance. In addition, law
enforcement authorities shall be notified regarding any acts by students regarding the possession, sale, or



19

19

furnishing of firearms, explosives, or other dangerous weapons in violation of Education Code 48915(c)(1) or (5)
or Penal Code 626.9 and 626.10.  (Education Code 48902)

Within one school day after a student's suspension or expulsion, the principal or designee shall notify appropriate
city or county law enforcement authorities, by telephone or other appropriate means, of any student acts which
may violate Education Code 48900(c) or (d), relating to the possession, use, offering, or sale of controlled
substances, alcohol, or intoxicants of any kind.  (Education Code 48902)

Post-Placement During Expulsion Placements

The Board shall refer expelled students to a program of study that is:  (Education Code 48915, 48915.01)

1. Appropriately prepared to accommodate students who exhibit discipline problems

2. Not provided at a comprehensive middle, junior, or senior high school or at any elementary school, unless
the program is offered at a community day school established at such a siteany of these

3. Not housed at the school site attended by the student at the time of suspension

(cf. 6158 - Independent Study)
(cf. 6185 - Community Day School)

When the placement described above is not available and when the County Superintendent so certifies, students
expelled for only acts described in items #6-12 under "Grounds for

Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12" and items #1-3 under "Additional Grounds for Suspension and
Expulsion: Grades 4-12" above may be referred to a program of study that is provided at another comprehensive
middle, junior, or senior high school or at an elementary school.  (Education Code 48915)

The program for a student expelled from any of grades K-6 shall not be combined or merged with programs
offered to students in any of grades 7-12.  (Education Code 48916.1)

Readmission After Expulsion

Readmission procedures shall be as follows:

Prior to the date set by the Board when it ordered the expulsion, for the district shall consider student's readmission
of the student.  (Education Code 48916):

21. The Superintendent or designee shall hold a conference with the parent/guardian and the student. At the
conference, the student's rehabilitation plan shall be reviewed and the Superintendent or designee shall
verify that the provisions of this plan have been met.  School regulations shall be reviewed and the student
and parent/guardian shall be asked to indicate in writing their willingness to comply with these regulations.

32. The Superintendent or designee shall transmit to the Board his/her recommendation regarding
readmission. The Board shall consider this recommendation in closed session if information would be
disclosed in violation of Education Code 49073- 49079. . If a written request for open session is received



20

20

from the parent/guardian or adult student, it shall be honored to the extent that privacy rights of other
students are not violated.

43. If the readmission is granted, the Superintendent or designee shall notify the student and parent/guardian,
by registered mail, of the Board's decision regarding readmission.

54. The Board may deny readmission only if it finds that the student has not satisfied the conditions of the
rehabilitation plan or that the student continues to pose a danger to campus safety or to other district
students or employees.  (Education Code 48916)

65. If the Board denies the readmission of a student, the Board shall determine either to continue the student's
placement in the alternative educational program initially selected or to place the student in another
program that serves expelled students, including placement in a county community school. (Education
Code 48916)

76. The Board shall provide written notice to the expelled student and parent/guardian describing the reasons
for denying readmittance into the regular program. This notice shall indicate the Board's determination
of the educational program which the Board has chosen. The student shall enroll in that program unless
the parent/guardian chooses to enroll the student in another school district.  (Education Code 48916)

No student shall be denied readmission into the district based solely on the student's arrest, adjudication by a
juvenile court, formal or informal supervision by a probation officer, detention in a juvenile facility, enrollment
in a juvenile court school, or other such contact with the juvenile justice system.  (Education Code 48645.5)

Maintenance of Records

The district shall maintain a record of each suspension and expulsion, including its specific cause(s).  (Education
Code 48900.8)

Expulsion records of any student shall be maintained in the student's mandatory interim record and sent to any
school in which the student subsequently enrolls upon written request by that school.  (Education Code 48918(k))

The Superintendent or designee shall, within five working days, honor any other district's request for information
about an expulsion from this district.  (Education Code 48915.1)

(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Regulation SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
approved: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised:  August 9, 2011
revised:  June 12, 2012
revised:  April 9, 2013
revised:  June 18,2014 Loyalton, California
revised:  March 10, 2015



1

Sierra County/Sierra-Plumas Joint USD
Board Policy
Students

BP 5144.1

SUSPENSION AND EXPULSION/DUE PROCESS

The Governing Board desires to provide district students access to educational opportunities in an orderly
school environment that protects their safety and security, ensures their welfare and well-being, and
promotes their learning and development. The Board shall develop rules and regulations setting the
standards of behavior expected of district students and the disciplinary processes and procedures for
addressing violations of those standards, including suspension and/or expulsion.
(cf. 5131 - Conduct)
(cf. 5131.1 - Bus Conduct)
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying)

The grounds for suspension and expulsion and the procedures for considering, recommending, and/or
implementing suspension and expulsion shall be only those specified in law, in this policy, and in the
accompanying administrative regulation.

Except when otherwise permitted by law, a student may be suspended or expelled only when his/her
behavior is related to a school activity or school attendance occurring within any district school or
otheranother school district, regardless of when it occurs, including, but not limited to, the following:
(Education Code 48900(s))

1. While on school grounds

2. While going to or coming from school

3. During the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus
(cf. 5112.5 - Open/Closed Campus)

4. During, going to, or coming from a school-sponsored activity
District staff shall enforce the rules concerning suspension and expulsion of students fairly, consistently,
equally, and in accordance with the district's nondiscrimination policies.
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities)

Appropriate Use of Suspension and ExpulsionAuthority

Except when a student's act that violates Education Code 48900(a)-(e) or), as listed in items #1-5 under
"Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12" of the accompanying administrative regulation,
or when his/her presence causes a danger to others, suspension shall be used only when other means of
correction have failed to bring about proper conduct.

Except when a student commits an act listed in Education Code 48915(c), the Superintendent or designee
shall have the discretion to determine whether to recommend to the Board that the student be expelled.



2

(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)

To correct the behavior of any student who is subject to discipline, the Superintendent or designee shall,
to the extent allowed by law, first use alternative disciplinary strategies specified in AR 5144 -
Discipline. (Education Code 48900.5, 48900.6)
(cf. 1020 - Youth Services)
(cf. 5138 - Conflict Resolution/Peer Mediation)
(cf. 5144 - Discipline)
(cf. 6142.4 - Service Learning/Community Service Classes)
(cf. 6164.2 - Guidance/Counseling Services)
(cf. 6164.5 - Student Success Teams)

A student's parents/guardians shall be notified as soon as possible when there is an escalating pattern of
misbehavior that could lead to on-campus or off-campus suspension.

No student in grades K-3 may be suspended for disruption or willful defiance, except by a teacher
pursuant to Education Code 48910.  (Education Code 48900)

Students shall not be suspended or expelled for truancy, tardiness, or absenteeism from assigned school
activities.
(cf. 5113 - Absences and Excuses)
(cf. 5113.1 - Chronic Absence and Truancy)

On-Campus Suspension

To ensure the proper supervision and ongoing learning of students who are suspended for any of the
reasons enumerated in Education Code 48900 and 48900.2, but who pose no imminent danger or threat
to anyone at school and for whom expulsion proceedings have not been initiated, the Superintendent or
designee shall establish a supervised suspension classroom program which meets the requirements of
law.

Except where a supervised suspension is permitted by law for a student's first offense, supervised
suspension shall be imposed only when other means of correction have failed to bring about proper
conduct.  (Education Code 48900.5)

A student's parents/guardians shall be notified as soon as possible when there is an escalating pattern of
misbehavior that could lead to classroom or school removal.

Due Process

The Board shall provide for the fair and equitable treatment of students facing suspension and expulsion
by affording them their due process rights under the law.  The Superintendent or designee shall comply
with procedures for notices, hearings, and appeals as specified in law and administrative regulation.
(Education Code 48911, 48915, 48915.5, 48918)

(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

Removal from Class by a Teacher and Parental Attendance

This deleted portion is
still law. Relevance to
policy is tangential.



3

When suspending a student from class for committing an obscene act, engaging in habitual profanity or
vulgarity, disrupting school activities, or otherwise willfully defying valid staff authority, the teacher of
the class may require any parent/guardian who lives with the student to attend a portion of the school
day in the class from which the student is being suspended, to assist in resolving the classroom behavior
problems.  (Education Code 48900.1)

Teachers should reserve the option of required parental attendance for cases in which they have
determined that it is the best strategy to promote positive interaction between the teacher and the student
and his/her parents/guardians and to improve the student's behavior.

Any teacher requiring parental attendance pursuant to this policy shall apply the policy uniformly to all
students within the classroom.  (Education Code 48900.1)

When a teacher requires parental attendance, the principal shall send a written notice to the
parent/guardian stating that his/her attendance is required pursuant to law and that, if there are reasonable
factors that may prevent the parent/guardian from complying with the requirement, he/she should contact
the school.  (Education Code 48900.1)

A parent/guardian who has received a written notice shall attend class as specified in the notice. After
completing the classroom visit and before leaving school premises, the parent/guardian also shall meet
with the principal or designee.  (Education Code 48900.1)

At the meeting with the student's parent/guardian, the principal or designee shall explain the district's
and school's discipline policies, including the disciplinary strategies that may be used to achieve proper
student conduct.

When a parent/guardian does not respond to the request to attend school, the principal or designee shall
contact him/her by any method that maintains the confidentiality of the student's records.

District regulations and school-site rules for student discipline shall include procedures for implementing
parental attendance requirements.  Parents/guardians shall be notified of this policy prior to its
implementation.  (Education Code 48900.1)

Supervised Suspension Classroom

Decision Not to Enforce Expulsion Order

Authority to Expel

A student, may be expelled only by the Board.  (Education Code 48918(j))

As required by law, the Superintendent or principal shall recommend expulsion and the Board shall expel
any student found to have committed any of the following "mandatory recommendation and mandatory
expulsion" acts at school or at a school activity off school grounds:  (Education Code 48915)

1. Possessing a firearm which is not an imitation firearm, as verified by a certificated employee,
unless the student had obtained prior written permission to possess the item from a certificated
school employee, with the principal or designee's concurrence



4

(cf. 5131.7 - Weapons and Dangerous Instruments)

may 2. Selling or otherwise furnishing a firearm

3. Brandishing a knife at another person

4. Unlawfully selling a controlled substance listed in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058

5. Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code 261, 266c, 286,
288, 288a, or 289, or committing a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code 243.4

6. Possessing an explosive as defined in 18 USC 921

For all other violations listed in the accompanying administrative regulation under "Grounds for
Suspension and Expulsion: Grades K-12" and "Additional Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion:
Grades 4-12," the Superintendent or principal shall have the discretion to recommend expulsion of a
student. If expulsion is recommended, the Board shall order the student expelled only if it makes a
finding of either or both of the following:  (Education Code 48915(b) and (e))

1. That other means of correction are not feasible or have repeatedly failed to bring about proper
conduct

2. That due to the nature of the violation, the presence of the student causes a continuing danger to
the physical safety of the student or others

A vote to expel a student shall be taken in a public session.

The Board may vote to suspend the enforcement of the expulsion order pursuant to the requirements of
law and the accompanying administrative regulation.  (Education Code 48917)

No student shall be expelled for disruption or willful defiance.  (Education Code 48900)

Due Process

The Board shall provide for the fair and equitable treatment of students facing suspension and/or
expulsion by affording them their due process rights under the law. The
Superintendent or designee shall comply with procedures for notices, hearings, and appeals as specified
in law and administrative regulation.  (Education Code 48911, 48915, 48915.5, 48918)

(cf. 5119 - Students Expelled from Other Districts)
(cf. 5144.2 - Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process (Students with Disabilities))

Maintenance and Monitoring of Outcome Data

The Superintendent or designee shall annually present to the Board a report of the outcome data which
the district is required to collect pursuant to Education Code 48900.8 and 48916.1, including the number
of students recommended for expulsion, the grounds for each recommended expulsion, the actions taken



5

by the Board, the types of referral made after each expulsion, and the disposition of the students after
the expulsion period.

The report shall be disaggregated by school and by numerically significant student subgroups, including,
but not limited to, ethnic subgroups, socioeconomically disadvantaged students, English learners, foster
youth, and students with disabilities. The report also shall include information about whether and how
the district is meeting its goals for improving school climate as specified in its local control and
accountability plan.
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan)

Legal Reference

EDUCATION CODE
212.5  Sexual harassment
233  Hate violence
1981-1981.5 Enrollment of students in community school
17292.5  Program for expelled students
32261  Interagency School Safety Demonstration Act of 1985
35145  Open board meetings
35146  Closed sessions (regarding suspensions)
35291  Rules (for government and discipline of schools)
35291.5  Rules and procedures on school discipline
48645.5  Readmission; contact with juvenile justice system
48660-48666  Community day schools
48853.5  Foster youth
48900-48927  Suspension and expulsion
48950  Speech and other communication
48980  Parental notifications
49073-49079  Privacy of student records
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan
CIVIL CODE
47  Privileged communication
48.8  Defamation liability
CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE
1985-1997  Subpoenas; means of production
GOVERNMENT CODE
11455.20  Contempt
54950-54963  Ralph M. Brown Act
HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE
11014.5  Drug paraphernalia
11053-11058  Standards and schedules
LABOR CODE
230.7  Discharge or discrimination against employee for taking time off to appear in school on behalf of a child
PENAL CODE
31  Principal of a crime, defined
240  Assault defined
241.2  Assault fines
242  Battery defined
243.2  Battery on school property
243.4  Sexual battery
245  Assault with deadly weapon
245.6  Hazing
261  Rape defined
266c  Unlawful sexual intercourse
286  Sodomy defined
288  Lewd or lascivious acts with child under age 14
288a  Oral copulation
289  Penetration of genital or anal openings
PENAL CODE (continued)
417.27  Laser pointers
422.55  Hate crime defined



6

PENAL CODE (continued)
422.6  Interference with exercise of civil rights
422.7  Aggravating factors for punishment
422.75  Enhanced penalties for hate crimes
626.2  Entry upon campus after written notice of suspension or dismissal without permission
626.9  Gun-Free School Zone Act of 1995
626.10  Dirks, daggers, knives, razors, or stun guns
868.5  Supporting person; attendance during testimony of witness
WELFARE AND INSTITUTIONS CODE
729.6  Counseling
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 18
921  Definitions, firearm
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 20
1415(K)  Placement in alternative educational setting
7151  Gun-free schools
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 42
11432-11435  Education of homeless children and youths
COURT DECISIONS
T.H. v. San Diego Unified School District (2004) 122 Cal. App. 4th 1267
Woodbury v. Dempsey (2003) 108 Cal. App. 4th 421
Board of Education of Sacramento City Unified School District v. Sacramento County Board of Education and Kenneth H. (2001)
85 Cal.App.4th 1321
Garcia v. Los Angeles Board of Education (1991) 123 Cal. App. 3d 807
Fremont Union High School District v. Santa Clara County Board (1991) 235 Cal. App. 3d 1182
John A. v. San Bernardino School District (1982) 33 Cal. 3d 301
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS
84 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 146 (2001)
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 348 (1997)
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 91 (1997)
80 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 85 (1997)

Management Resources:
CSBA PUBLICATIONS
Safe Schools:  Strategies for Governing Boards to Ensure Student Success, 2011
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION, OFFICE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS PUBLICATIONS
Dear Colleague Letter on the Nondiscriminatory Administration of School Discipline, January 2014
WEB SITES
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org
California Attorney General's Office:  http://www.oag.ca.gov
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov
U.S. Department of Education, Office for Civil Rights:  http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/crdc-2012-data-
summary.pdf
U.S. Department of Education, Office of Safe and Drug-Free Schools: http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osdfs

SIERRA-PLUMAS JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
Policy SIERRA COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION
adopted: April 10, 2007 Sierraville, California
revised:  August 9, 2011
revised:  June 12, 2012
revised:  April 9, 2013
revised:  June 18, 2014 Loyalton, California
revised:  March 10, 2015

http://www.csba.org
http://www.oag.ca.gov
http://www.cde.ca.gov
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/docs/crdc-2012-data-
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/osdfs

	1_03_10_2015_SCOE_AGENDA.pdf
	2_SRSCalifornia Only 25%.pdf
	3_SCOE Feb2015 ObjSumm.pdf
	4_Positive Certification.pdf
	5_2-10-15 SCOE MINUTES.pdf
	6_SCOE Feb2015 Checks.pdf
	7_Calendar Draft 15-16 #4.pdf
	8_SCOE 2nd Interim Narrative 2014-2015.pdf
	9_SCOE_Second_Interim_2014-15.pdf
	10_Policy Guidesheet_March.pdf
	11_Policies.pdf

